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Company Profile
NI b

BYD Company Limited (“BYD” or “the Company” together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group”; stock code: H Shares: 01211; A Shares: 002594)
is principally engaged in automobile business which includes traditional
fuel-engined vehicles and new energy vehicles, handset components
and assembly services, as well as rechargeable battery and photovoltaic
business while taking advantage of its technological superiority to actively
develop urban rail transportation business segment.

Since tapping into the automobile business in 2003, by leveraging on
its advanced technology and cost advantages and international quality
products, the Group has achieved remarkable growth in automobile
business and has rapidly grown into a leading automobile manufacturer in
China with domestic self-owned brand. As a pioneer in the research and
development and promotion of new energy vehicles in the world, the Group
has accumulated extensive skills and gained leading market share in the
new energy vehicles area, which has established the leading position of
BYD in the global new energy vehicles sector.

As a global leading high-end platform-based manufacturing enterprise,
the Group provides world renowned customers with innovative materials
development, product design, research and development, parts and
components, as well as complete machine manufacturing, supply chain
management and, logistics, after-sales and other one-stop services.
Its products cover four major areas including smartphone and PC, new
intelligent product, automotive intelligent system and medical and health,
but the Group does not produce its own brand of whole products. Main
customers of the business include Huawei, Samsung, Apple, vivo, Xiaomi
and other intelligent mobile terminal leaders.

BYD is one of the leading rechargeable battery manufacturers in the global
arena. Major clients include leading consumer electronics manufacturers
such as Samsung and Dell, as well as global leading professional robot
brands such as Ecovacs and iRobot. Lithium-ion batteries produced by the
Group are widely applied in consumer electronics and new smart products.

In September 2008, MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company (now
renamed as Berkshire Hathaway Energy), a subsidiary of Berkshire
Hathaway, entered into an agreement with the Company, pursuant to which
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company acquired 225 million H Shares of
the Company, (representing approximately 7.86% of the Company’s total
capital at present, approximately 8.25% of the Company’s total capital
as of 31 December 2020), to become the Group’s long term investment
strategic partner. In June 2011, the Company made an IPO of 79 million
RMB ordinary shares (A shares) which were listed on the SME Board of
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“the Shenzhen Stock Exchange”).

New energy vehicles and urban rail transportation businesses are
important areas for BYD’s future development. By leveraging its technology
and quality advantages in related business areas, the Group will
actively develop the application of new energy vehicles and urban rail
transportation products at home and abroad to facilitate the Group’s long-
term and sustainable development.
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BYD Company Limited
LeEE R BRAE

Financial Highlights
MBREE

FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES IEH&FEHKEE LR
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-RLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EZ8E —T-hE —E-N\FE Tt E TR F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARE®TT
Revenue e 153,469,184 121,778,117 121,790,925 102,650,614 100,207,703
Gross profit £ 27,243,591 18,075,993 18,066,764 17,935,074 19,018,263
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE (%) 18 15 15 17 19
Profit attributable to equity ~ BFARERHEA 4,234,267 1,614,450 2,780,194 4,066,478 5,052,154
holders of the parent [ 16 7
Net profit margin (%) SRR E (%) 2.8 1.3 2.3 4.0 5.0
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEF —E-NE —T-)\#F —T—tF ZE-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETET
Net assets FEEE 56,874,274 56,762,289 55,198,289 55,004,194 51,255,929
(less minority interests) (B DB R ER)
Total assets EERE 201,017,321 195,641,593 194,571,077 178,099,430 145,070,778
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) BRBELE(%) (H15T) 69 124 104 93 74
Current ratio (times) BN X (%) 1.05 0.99 0.99 0.98 1.00
Receivables turnover eSS 141 190 189 192 132
(days) (Note) (B) (f7:t)
Inventory turnover (days) FEEEXRH(A) 83 92 82 81 76

Note: Gearing ratio = Total borrowings net of cash and cash  f/if -

equivalents/net assets (less minority interests)

Receivables include trade receivables, trade receivable

financing, contract assets, accounts due from associates and

joint ventures, accounts due from related parties.

EXAELER-RAEENRReRRESEE
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Financial Highlights
MBEE

REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT CATEGORIES RERERIZISMNEESE

@ Rechargeable Batteries and Photovoltaic
—RABEBIAR

@® Mobile handset components, assembly service
and other products
FHEM  ARREMBER

@ Automobiles and related products, and other products
B ABEEER R EMESR

REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY LOCATIONS OF #®ZEFAEHhESHEREEE
CUSTOMERS

@® PRC (including Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan)

TR (BIEERALE)

® Overseas
2N
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BYD Company Limited
LeEE R BRAE

Corporate Information

NEER
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Zhang Min (Chairman)
Cai Hong-ping

Jiang Yan-bo

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Wang Chuan-fu

Xia Zuo-quan

Cai Hong-ping (Chairman)
Zhang Min

Jiang Yan-bo

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Wang Chuan-fu

Lv Xiang-yang

Jiang Yan-bo (Chairman)
Cai Hong-ping

Zhang Min
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wang Chuan-fu
Li Qian

LEGAL ADDRESS

No. 1 Yan’an Road
Kuichong Sub-district
Dapeng New District
Shenzhen
Guangdong Province
The PRC

INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS
Ernst & Young

DOMESTIC AUDITORS
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP)

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1712, 17th Floor

Tower 2 Grand Central Plaza

No. 138 Shatin Rural Committee Road
New Territories

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR AND MEDIA RELATIONS CONSULTANT

iPR Ogilvy Ltd.

Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606
Email: byd@iprogilvy.com

WEBSITE

www.byd.com

STOCK CODE

H Shares: 01211 (The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”))
A Shares: 002594 (Shenzhen Stock Exchange)
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BYD Company Limited
LeEE R BRAE

Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of BYD Company Limited
(“BYD” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”), | hereby present the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year” or
the “Period”).

In 2020, the international situation presented sudden and
perplexing changes. The COVID-19 outbreak dealt a heavy blow
on the global economy. However, China was the only major
economy that achieved a positive growth worldwide. In the full
Year, China realized a Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate
of 2.3%.

During the Year, China recorded an automobile sales volume
of approximately 25,311,000 units, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 1.9%. Among them, the new energy vehicle
industry rose against the headwind with a full year sales volume
of 1,367,000 units, representing a year-on-year growth of 10.9%.
Driven by the tide of new energy vehicle development across the
board, the sales volume of new energy vehicles increased month
by month and hit an all-time monthly high in December. The new
energy vehicle industry in China is gradually evolving from the
incubation period to development period, transforming into a
vital force which leads the conversion of the global automobile
industry. In respect of the smart terminal segment, the shipments
of 5G smartphone, laptop and tablet continued to rise. In terms
of rechargeable batteries, due to the pandemic, the sales
performance of global consumer electronics was under pressure,
further influenced the upstream demands of the rechargeable
batteries. As for photovoltaic industry, since the feed-in tariff
gradually achieved a price parity with power prices, the global PV
market recorded a higher-than-expected growth during the Period.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group realized
an operating revenue of RMB153,469 million. The earnings
attributable to the owners of the parent company were RMB4,234
million, up 162%, with the earnings per share of RMB1.47. The
Board of Directors suggests distributing an ending dividend of
RMBO0.148 per share (tax-inclusive).

BEAIRR
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During the Year, the Group’s new energy vehicle sales placed
firmly in global front rank. In particular, the Group launched an
all-new flagship model “Han” and a facelift flagship SUV “Tang”,
which have been widely acclaimed among consumers, and the
brand influence continued to grow. Meanwhile, the Group caught
the tide of online ride-hailing industry, actively cooperated with
DiDi to develop the world's first customized online ride-hailing
vehicle, D1, which specifically caters to the needs of online ride-
hailing users.

In the field of traditional fuel automobiles, during the Year, the
Group released the fuel version of “Song Plus”. “Song Plus” is
powered by an all-new BYD Xiaoyun 1.5Ti high-power powertrain
and has introduced the exterior design language of Dragon
Face. After launch, it has been widely appreciated by the market,
therefore boosted the Group’s fuel vehicle business to grow
against the market downtrend.

2020 is an important milestone for BYD' s marketization strategy.
BYD Semiconductor has completed internal reorganization,
introduction of strategic investors, shareholding reform and
other related works. It symbolized the key step forward in BYD’s
marketization strategy.

Guided by the thought of marketization strategy, BYD has actively
opened its arm wide and displayed an inclusive mindset. During
the Year, the Group and Toyota set up a joint venture, which is
a research and development company specialized in electric
vehicles. Later on, the Group signed a strategic business alliance
agreement with Hino Motors. Hence further accelerate the
marketization process of the Group.

During the Period, BYD became the shareholder of Allystar
Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd., Canadian Solar Inc., Hunan
Yuneng New Energy Battery Material Co., Ltd. and other core
companies along the industry chain. In aspect of high-precision
navigation, the Company carried out in-depth cooperation
with Allystar, to strengthen its layout in intellectualization and
differentiation based on chip technology; in aspect of new energy
industry, the Company and Canadian Solar Inc. reached a
consensus that the photovoltaic industry and the business model
of “photovoltaic+energy storage integration” have a promising
prospect, furthermore, they committed to jointly provide first-
class solutions for global photovoltaic development; in aspect of
battery industry, leveraging the strategic synergy in the upstream
and downstream of the industrial chain with Hunan Yuneng, the
Group’s competitive advantage will be enhanced.

Annual Report 2020
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES
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BYD Company Limited
LeEE R BRAE

Chairman’s Statement

EEHRES

Further, in early 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic broke out. By
exerting its advantages and applying its own resources, the
Group actively participated in the epidemic prevention and anti-
epidemic, to meet the needs of the community and to fulfill its
corporate social responsibility.

In terms of handset components and assembly business, the
Group has increasingly diversified its product portfolio with its
industry-leading advantages of research, development and
manufacturing strengths. Currently the Group covers four major
businesses, including smartphone and PC, new intelligent
product, automotive intelligent system and healthcare products.
With the optimization of the product mix and the improvement in
the overall operational efficiency, the profitability has also been
further improved.

The rechargeable battery business achieved relatively rapid
growth during the Year. The photovoltaic business realized further
increase in revenue benefiting from faster-than-expected growth
in the industry.

Looking ahead to 2021, a new round of global scientific and
technological innovation and industrial revolution will achieve
profound progress. In terms of automobile, electrification is
inevitable, and the Group has kept its tenacious hold on the
core technologies of motor, electric control, battery, power
semiconductor and other fields. The Group also leveraged on
technological revolution, “blade battery” and super hybrid DM-
i, to promote a comprehensive electrification of the automotive
business.

In addition, the Group is now accelerating the pace of
marketization. The spin-off listing of BYD Semiconductor will
help it further improve the multiple-channel financing capacity
and brand recognition, and therefore improving the sustainable
competitive strengths in the long term. In future, the Group will
incubate more competitive subsidiaries, realize marketization
operation, fully unleash the market potentials of different business
units within the Group, and generate incremental value to the
Group.

In terms of automotive intellectualization, the Group has
completed strategic investment in Horizon Robotics, an automotive
intelligence core chip manufacturer, representing a further step
in BYD’s industrial investment. BYD’s chip and intellectualization
technology accumulations, together with Horizon Robotics’ Al chip
and algorithm, the cooperation created a matrix of complementary
advantages, which enable the Group to further develop the in-
depth technology innovation.
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In January 2021, the Group successfully completed the private
placement of 133 million new H shares. The nearly HK$30 billion
lightning placement of H shares has attracted many top long-term
and sovereign funds in the world. This round of financing will
significantly enhance the Company’s capital strength, provide
strong financial support for the Company’s investment in the fields
of electrification, intellectualization and power batteries, and help
the Company’s business to achieve rapid growth.

In terms of the handset component and assembly segment, the
Group will leveraging on the advantages, leading technologies
and advanced manufacturing capacity, to vigorously develop
utilization of the key customer in North America while maintaining
its leading position in the field of Android customers. BYD aims at
increasing the market share of current product line and expand
into new product lines. Therefore optimize the customer structure
and product mix, realizing the coordinated and rapid development
of component business and assembly, further, to generate new
growing momentum for the smart phone and PC business. On the
other side, the Group will take hold of vast business opportunities
in emerging fields, continuously expand the product lines of
intelligent product and automotive intelligent system, in particular,
to expand the product portfolio with electronic atomizers,
unmanned aerial vehicles and smart home appliances, which
will enter the stage of sharp growth in sales volume, with the
expectation of driving the robust growth of the Group’s business.

As to the rechargeable battery segment, the Group will apply
new technologies to enlarge the customer base and increase the
market share in related niches. In terms of photovoltaic business,
the Group will seize the market opportunity, leveraging on its
reputation of high product quality to build up a solid foundation for
new round of increments, continuously increase the market share
at home and abroad.

In the coming future, the Group will continue to take new energy
vehicles and urban rail transit business as important strategic
development direction and provide cites with comprehensive
solutions for pollution control and congestion issue, devoting
itself to the performance of corporate social responsibility fully by
addressing the issues of urban air pollution and traffic congestion
that exist universally.
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BYD Company Limited
LeEE R BRAE

Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Within the context of China's acceleration in achieving carbon
neutrality, BYD will accelerate the development and application
of new energy. Meanwhile, the Group will strengthen the efforts
in core technology research and development, build up an
ecosystem of win-win industrial cooperation, and speed up
marketization development. Therefore achieve the enduring
prosperous and the sustainable development of the Group, further
more, build BYD into a longstanding company in Chinese industry.

Lastly, on behalf of BYD, | would like to express sincere gratitude
to our loyal customers for their persistent support. | also give
my heartfelt thanks to all business partners, investors and
shareholders for their trust. Besides, | would also like to present
my heartfelt gratitude to all staff for their consistent hard work,
sacrifice and contribution in the past year. BYD will continue
to embrace the future as usual, always arm itself, seize market
opportunities and leverage its own advantages to promote the
long-term healthy development of the Company and focus on
maximizing returns for shareholders.

Chairman
Wang Chuan-fu
Shenzhen, the PRC, 29 March 2021
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INDUSTRY ANALYSIS AND REVIEW
Automobiles Business

In 2020, amid the severe and complicated international situation
and the COVID-19 outbreak, the global economy took a big hit,
and the domestic economy was greatly affected. According to
the data released by the National Bureau of Statistics, the annual
GDP growth rate was only 2.3%. However, as China implemented
effective control over the pandemic in an relatively early stage, the
economic growth shifted from negative to positive throughout the
year, and economic operation firstly declined and then rose. In
the fourth quarter, the GDP rebounded to 6.5%. China’s economy
recovered strongly and China became the only one of the major
economies that achieved positive economic growth.

According to the statistics from the China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers, the accumulated production and sales
volume of automobiles in China were 25.225 million and 25.311
million units in 2020, respectively, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 2.0% and 1.9%. Among them, the production and
sales volume of new energy vehicles in China grew against the
trend, both hitting new highs. The annual production and sales
volume was 1.366 million units and 1.367 million units respectively,
representing a year-on-year increase of 7.5% and 10.9%. Under
the wave of the all-round development of new energy vehicles, the
sales of new energy vehicles in China rebounded month by month
as the pandemic was steadily under control. Furthermore, the
production and sales volume recorded new highs in December.
The industry of China’s new energy vehicles is gradually
evolving from the incubation period to the development period,
transforming into a vital force which leads the conversion of the
global automobile industry.
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In 2020, efforts were made to push the industry of China’s new
energy vehicles further into the new stage of high-quality market-
oriented development steadily. In April, the Ministry of Finance,
the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the Ministry
of Science and Technology, and the National Development and
Reform Commission jointly issued the “Notice on Improving the
Financial Subsidies for the Promotion and Application of New
Energy Vehicles”. The Notice made it clear that the validity period
of financial subsidies for new energy vehicles would be extended
to the end of 2022 and the financial subsidies will phase out in the
following two years. This move consolidated the early development
results of the industry while further promoting the healthy, stable,
and market-oriented development of the industry. the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the Ministry of
Finance, the Ministry of Commerce, the General Administration
of Customs, and the State Administration for Market Regulation
jointly issued the “Decision on Revising the Measures for the
Parallel Management of the Scores of Average Fuel Consumption
of Passenger Car Enterprises and New Energy Vehicles”. By
improving the assessment method of passenger car enterprises
based on the points of the average fuel consumption of passenger
cars and new energy vehicles, the Decision would further step
up the structural adjustment, transformation and upgrading of
the automobile industry. In November, the General Office of the
State Council formally promulgated the “Development Plan for the
New Energy Automobile Industry (2021-2035)", making it explicit
that by 2025, the market share of new energy vehicles sales
volume would account for about 20% of the total, and by 2035,
pure electric vehicles should become the mainstream among
sales of vehicles, therefore realize the full electrification in the
public transportation vehicles. The Development Plan indicated
the direction for the high-quality development of the automobile
industry. It would also help China transform from a big automobile
country to a powerful one. Other than that, with the proposing
and implementing of the peak carbon dioxide emissions and
carbon neutrality, China will further accelerate the transformation
of energy structures, hence promote the revolution both on the
supply side and the demand side.

In June,
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Handset Components and Assembly Business

According to the statistics from IDC, a market research institute,
in 2020, the shipment of global smart phones dropped by 5.9% to
1.292 billion units year on year, of which the market penetration
and shipment of 5G smart phones were still on the rise. According
to the data released by the China Academy of Information and
Communications Technology, in 2020, the shipment of China’s
domestic smart phones decreased by 20.4% to 296 million units
year on year, whereas that of 5G smart phones showed an upward
trend. Accumulative 163 million units were shipped throughout
the year. At the same time, the pandemic catalyzed new business
opportunities like online education, remote office, and online
entertainment. The sales volume of notebook computers and
tablet computers grew year on year. According to the statistics
from IDC, a market research institute, in 2020, the shipment of the
global PC market exceeded 300 million units, a 13.1% increase
over last year, and that of the global tablet computers reached
164 million units, a 13.6% increase over last year.

Rechargeable Batteries and Photovoltaic Business

In 2020, due to the impact of the pandemic, global consumer
electronics sales was under pressure, and the upstream battery
demand was also affected. In the field of photovoltaics, despite
the impact of the COVID-19, the global photovoltaics achieved
more than expected growth. According to the statistics of CPIA,
it's estimated that the global newly installed photovoltaic capacity
was 130GW, a 13% increase over last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

BYD Company Limited (“BYD” or “the Company” together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group”) is principally engaged in automobile
business which includes new energy vehicles and traditional fuel-
engined vehicles, handset components and assembly services,
rechargeable batteries and photovoltaic products, as well as the
urban rail transit and other business segments which the Group
has actively developed. During the Year, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately RMB153,469 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 26.02%, among which, the revenue
from the automobiles and related products, and other products
amounted to approximately RMB81,958 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 37.66%; the revenue from the mobile
handset components, assembly service and other products
amounted to approximately RMB59,354 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 13.01%; and the revenue from the
rechargeable batteries and photovoltaic business amounted to
approximately RMB11,705 million, representing a year-on year
increase of 20.44%. These three business segments accounted
for 53.40%, 38.68% and 7.63% of the Group’s total revenue,
respectively.

Automobiles Business

2020 was a year when the global automobile industry underwent
transformation and upgrading, therefore accelerated the pace
of revolution. As a pioneer and leader in the new energy
vehicle industry, BYD leveraged on technological innovation for
developing a better life. The Group promoted the high-quality
development of the industry through technology iteration. BYD was
determined to upgrade itself from being “Made in China” to the
“China Brand”. The Group further enhanced the comprehensive
competitiveness and brand influence of its products by fully
upgrading the interior and exterior decoration, man-machine
interaction, and intelligence of automobile products. During the
year, the Group’s new energy vehicles sales placed firmly in
global front rank.

In the field of new energy passenger cars, the Group based on
the advanced technologies and the customer-centered mindset
to constantly launch market-competitive models. Therefore make
steady progresses on the way of brand premiumlization. During
the Year, the Group unveiled the brand-new flagship model
“Han” and the revamped flagship SUV “Tang”, which won the
favor of the market and consumers. With the drivers of 2 flagship
models, the sales volume’s percentage of RMB200,000 above
grew significantly. Among them, the sales volume of model “Han”
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has kept rising steadily since its launch in July. Model “Han” is
the very first high-end C-class sedan that recorded a monthly
sales over 10,000 units in China’s automobile industry. The brand-
new flagship Model “Han” are the world’s first model equipped
with the Group’s new-generation power battery “blade battery”.
The “blade battery” was released in March of the year. It has six
technological innovations including super safety, super durability,
super traveling range, super strength, super power, and ultra-low
temperature performance. Its safety performance redefines the
industry standards, it guaranteed the safety of consumers. With
full upgrade in aspect of intelligence and continued evolve of OTA
upgrade service, Model “Han” provide consumers with a richer
and more convenient car experience. The hot sales of Model
“Han” break the unchangeable pattern of the self-owned brands
and help continuously improve the Group’s brand image.

During the Year, the Group unveiled the world’s first customized
model “D1” of the online car-hailing nature in November, which
had been jointly created by the Group and DiDi. Model “D1” is an
intelligent ride-sharing new species, tailored to satisfy the unique
needs of the online ride-hailing market. The model were created
by the Group and DiDi by leveraging their respective unique
advantages in the electric automobile, ride-sharing fields and the
demand and travel data of 550 million passengers and a great
many drivers on the DiDi platform.

In the field of pure electric buses, due to the impact of the
COVID-19, market clearing is accelerated, and the industry
concentration further increased. By relying on the long-term
established good reputation and brand image, the Group acts
faster to expand the domestic and overseas markets. In the
domestic market, through market expansion, service model
improvement and other strategies, the Group has not only entered
a number of cities including Chengde, Zhenjiang, Yichang,
Yongzhou, etc., but also deepened its market operations in
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Changsha, Tianjin, etc. In overseas
markets, although the COVID-19 has wreaked havoc, the Group’s
overseas business has still achieved rapid growth. During
the Year, BYD completed the delivery of orders to the United
Kingdom, Sweden, Germany, and other countries. In the European
market, the Group’s market share of pure electric buses exceeded
20%. In 2020, the sales volume of the Group’s electric buses grew
against downtrend, and the market share of electric buses further
increased.
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In the field of traditional fuel-engined vehicles, BYD released
the “Song Plus” fuel version in September 2020. Model “Song
Plus” is the first model equipped with BYD'’s new-generation 1.5Ti
highpower powertrain. Since their launch, they have been widely
praised by the market, which boosts the hot sales of “Song”
series products and drives the growth of the Group’s fuel-engined
vehicle business against the downtrend.

In the field of urban rail transit, breakthroughs have been made
in the two major “SkyShuttle” projects in the Bishan District of
Chongging and the Pingshan District of Shenzhen. Meanwhile,
the Group acquired the Contracts in Salvador and Sao Paulo, the
famous cities of Brazil respectively in 2020.

In addition, in 2020, BYD stepped into a new stage of
marketization development. The spin off and listing of BYD
Semiconductor is an important milestone in the marketization
strategy. Currently, BYD Semiconductor has completed
internal reorganization, introduction of strategic investors, and
shareholding reforms. Meanwhile, BYD Semiconductor has been
authorized to start the preparatory work for the spin-off listing. As
an independent leading manufacturer of automotive-grade IGBTs
in China, BYD Semiconductor possesses “first mover advantage”
in terms of technology accumulation, reserve of talents, and
product application experience. BYD Semiconductor breaks
technological monopoly of overseas manufacturers.

With respect to outside cooperation, under the guidance of the
marketization strategy, BYD and Toyota established BYD TOYOTA
EV Technology Co., Ltd. (trepim @M ESHEREE AR AF]) during
the Year. With respect to the cooperation in the field of new energy
passenger cars, BYD and Hino Motors, Ltd. signed a Strategic
Business Alliance Agreement on the proposed establishment of a
joint venture for the joint development of BEVs and electric vehicle
parts for the purpose of promoting the worldwide popularization of
BEVs and fulfilling a low-carbon society as soon as possible.

During the Period, BYD became the shareholder of Allystar
Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd., Canadian Solar Inc., Hunan
Yuneng New Energy Battery Material Co., Ltd. and other core
companies along the industry chain. In aspect of high-precision
navigation, the Company carried out in-depth cooperation
with Allystar, to strengthen its layout in intellectualization and
differentiation based on chip technology; in aspect of new energy
industry, the Company and Canadian Solar Inc. reached a
consensus that the photovoltaic industry and the business model
of “photovoltaic+energy storage integration” have a promising
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prospect, further more, they committed to jointly provide first-class
solutions for global photovoltaic development; in aspect of battery
industry, leveraging the strategic synergy in the upstream and
downstream of the industrial chain of Hunan Yuneng, the Group’s
competitive advantage will be enhanced.

At the beginning of 2020, the COVID-19 broke out in China. The
pandemic prevention task is arduous due to the shortage of
facial masks. BYD, as a representative of Chinese manufacturer,
based on its strong R&D capabilities and manufacturing
strengths, supported the production of masks spare no efforts.
BYD accomplished the feat of completing drawings in 3 days,
developing mask machines in 7 days, and producing masks in 10
days. In addition to ensuring the supply of domestic pandemic
prevention and control supplies, BYD actively assist the fight
against the pandemic globally to fulfill its corporate social
responsibilities. During the Period, the pandemic prevention and
control supplies produced by BYD were shipped to more than 70
countries and regions around the world. BYD thus earned broad
admiration from home and abroad.

Handset Components and Assembly Business

As a world-leading platform for high-end manufacturers, BYD
provides customers with the development of new materials,
product design and development, components and machine
manufacturing, supply chain management, logistics and
after-sales service and other one-stop services. The Group’s
businesses covers from smartphone and PC, new intelligent
product, automotive intelligent system and healthcare. The Group,
thanks to the world-leading R&D and manufacturing capabilities,
diversified product portfolios, and close strategic customer
relationships, has entered a new cycle of rapid growth.

During the Year, the Group’s market share in Android customers
and key customers in North America further increased, and the
business continued to expand, in particular, the rapid growth
of glass and ceramic product shipments; the introduction of
new customers in the new smart product sector, which greatly
increased the business scale and opened up new growth
space. The development of smart automotive systems business
outperforms the market. At the same time, BYD promoted lean
production, reduced costs and increase efficiency, with the overall
operational efficiency further improved. With the optimization of
the product mix and the improvement in the overall operational
efficiency, the profitability of the Group has also been enhanced.
During the Period, the revenue of the Group in the mobile
handset components, assembly service and other products was
approximately RMB59,354 million.
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Rechargeable Batteries and Photovoltaic Business

The Group’s rechargeable batteries mainly include lithium-ion
batteries and iron batteries products, which are widely used in
mobile phones, electronic tools and other portable electronic
devices. During the Year, the Group’s traditional battery business
achieved steady growth. In respect of photovoltaic business,
the Group actively explored the global market and achieved
steady growth in sales revenue. During the Year, the revenue
of rechargeable batteries and photovoltaic business was about

RMB11,705 million.

PROSPECT AND STRATEGY

Looking into 2021, the international environment is becoming
increasingly complex, instability and uncertainty still exist and
COVID-19 has a far-reaching impact, all of which will represent
a countercurrent for economic globalization. as a
new round of global scientific and technological revolution and
industrial reform deepens, the automobile industry is facing a
period of major change that's rarely seen in a century. With the

However,

global electrification tide approaching, OEMs are accelerating
the pace of developing of new energy vehicles. The new energy
vehicle industry is facing a historical opportunity.

Automobiles Business

In January 2021, BYD Auto officially released the brand new
LOGO, which expressed BYD Auto’s willingness to link with users
and partners with a more open attitude. So as to jointly explore
new business models of automobile products and services in the
intelligent era; to build up a new value automobile brand together.
At the same time, BYD will bring forth the new, based on the
technology innovation of “blade batteries” and super hybrid DM-
i, to accelerate the era of price parity between new energy vehicle
and traditional fuel vehicles, to promote the full electrification of

the automobile industry.

In the field of passenger cars, BYD launched three models of
DM-i super hybrid automobiles “Qin PLUS DM-i", “Song PLUS
DM-i", and “Tang DM-i". The DM-i models, designed with a super
bringing consumers
an outstanding driving experience that is of ultra-low fuel

hybrid system, features electric power,

consumption, quiet and smooth. The fuel consumption is only 3.8
/100 kilometers in the mode of low battery, with the combination
traveling range of electricity and fuel over 1,200 kilometers. The
model’s 0-100km/h acceleration time is 2 to 3 seconds faster than
the fuel vehicles that with similar purchase price. Meanwhile, in
order to provide a safer consumption experience for consumers,
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the Group’s new energy vehicles will be gradually switched to
the “blade battery” following model “Han”’s practice. In addition,
the launch of D1 is expected to bring new drivers to the Group’s
growth as the COVID-19 epidemic in China under control,
resulting in travel resumption over time.

In the field of battery electric bus, BYD, as the world’s first
new energy enterprise originating the strategy of “urban bus
electrification”, provides green environmental protection solutions
for more and more countries and regions with high-quality new
energy vehicles, and earns market preference for its significant
environmental benefits and reliable quality.

For the traditional fuel vehicles, the Group will enhance the
overall competitiveness through continuous optimization of
exterior and interior decoration and continuous improvement
in product performance, providing consumers with a better
driving experience. This will help enhance the influence of BYD
automobile brand.

For the rail transit, “SkyRail” and “SkyShuttle”, as low-cost urban
rail transit solutions, have a huge market demand. With the
accelerating development of new infrastructure, the Group will
continue pushing forward the construction schedule of domestic
and overseas projects. It is expected that related businesses will
bring new increments to the Group’s revenue and profits.

In terms of marketization strategy, the semiconductor’'s spin-off
listing will bring BYD an improving financing ability and brand
effect. And BYD will enjoy a sustainable competitive edge by
enhancing its abilities in both resource integration and product
R&D. This will help BYD secure market development opportunities
based on the domestic capital market resources, building up a
solid foundation for becoming a supplier of new semiconductors
that are efficient, smart and integrated. The Group will embark on
incubating more subsidiaries with strong market competitiveness
to realize marketization operation. This is aimed at stretching the
market potential of each business under BYD and enhancing the
overall valuation of the Group.

In terms of automotive intellectualization, the Group has
completed strategic investment in Horizon Robotics, an automotive
intelligence core chip manufacturer, representing a further step
in BYD’s industrial investment. BYD’s chip and intellectualization
technology accumulations, together with Horizon Robotics’ Al chip
and algorithm, the cooperation created a matrix of complementary
advantages, which enable the Group to further develop the in-
depth technology innovation.
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In January 2021, the Group successfully completed the private
placement of 133 million new H shares. The nearly HK$30 billion
lightning placement of H shares has attracted many top long-term
and sovereign funds in the world. This round of financing will
significantly enhance the Company’s capital strength, provide
strong financial support for the Company’s investment in the fields
of electrification, intellectualization and power batteries, and help
the Company’s business to achieve rapid growth.

Handset Components and Assembly Business

With the post-epidemic economic recovery and the sustained
advancement of 5G technology, 2021 is expected to see the
resumption of the market demand in an all-round way. According
to a report released by market research agency TrendForce, the
global mobile phone production volume will increase by 9% year-
on-year to 1.36 billion units in 2021, 5G smart phone shipments
are expected to double to about 500 million units, and the
market penetration rate will increase to 37%. The global laptop
shipments are likely to grow to 217 million units, an increase of
8.6% year-on-year. As a leading industry manufacturer that lead
technologies and advanced manufacturing capabilities, the Group
will benefit more from the recovery of the industry boom and drive
business growth, especially the rising share of glass and ceramic
business is expected to reach a new level in shipment While
maintaining its leading position in the field of Android users, the
Group will continue promoting the business of key customers in
North America, devoting itself to increasing the share of existing
products and expanding more categories so as to optimize the
customer structure and product mix, and realizing the coordinated
and rapid development of component business and assembly
business, to inject new growth momentum into the smart phone
and PC business.

Furthermore, the Group will grasp the huge business opportunities
in emerging business areas by means of the multi-dimensional
layout of business areas and expanding categories. Meanwhile,
the Group will invest more in research and development of
product technology upgrading and dedicate itself to new customer
development for an improving market share.In particular, business
segments such as electronic atomization devices, unmanned
aerial vehicles, smart home and other products will enter mass
production, which will propel the Group’s business on the high-
speed growth track. With the continuous development and
application of technologies such as the electrification, intelligence,
and autonomous driving of automobiles,, the intelligent vehicle
market will expand, driving the Group’s vehicle intelligent system
business into the fast track of development. The Group will
increase research and development investment to expand product
line, and continue to deepen cooperation with automobile OEMs
at home and abroad, so as to realize the long-term development
of its automotive intelligent system business. In the medical and
health segment, the Group will continue expand business team.
Meanwhile, leverage on its advantages in precision manufacturing
technology and R&D in software and hard-ware, the Group further
expands its medical and health products to cultivate a new
backbone for the its future development.

“EC—F—F AEERINTTHK.33EBITHR
FLtE o RIRITB00 BB HPIEEE WS T 2K
TMEERRE  THRES2H8H - KAREHBELR
BARERES  BRATMBIEEBHEL Bl
MEBHEAZRHNRARRBANES IR - B
NRAREBERREKE

FHRBHERARER

BE & B R IE R R A BB 8 IA MG RUIT R B HeaE -
- FHPARTERTRKNEEESR - BT
F B TrendForceB R{EEA » — - —F%
HRFHAEERERFIEINI%T13.61855  5GE#E
FHNESBHEMEINSES  MHL2BEREH
B37%  RHEEHEEAEHESEREE217ES
BB RS8.6% o fEATA BB MM LERERE
RITERERE  SESENZERNTESRER
T B ERRERERE  CEEFEBEREAEESRD
HMIBERA HESELEBELHAR - ERENE
BREFEBMEBLNMNORE - EEBFEXNNE
EIAEXBRFPER  MAONIRAIRBERNDEEHM
PLZRENE  BEGLEFPABINERES B
HEAHEBNEALERNHRSRER - BE 42
FHNFEEBIAZTHIERIRE -

R - RESEENRREALAOEADHE 24
EMBERES - SHERME - MAMERAE
MBMAR  BAOMEFHE - X TEREATSH
Mo LERETHILERE BEAK BEREFE
BREFEARES  HEFEXBEANGRIER
PE - BEAENEDL  BRICUAREDHERS
RIHIHEERMER - NESRLETERELT
HiEA  wHEETEERAREREAZRRRE
& - REBIHEMKABERA  BRERR 8
MREFRINTEIEBMOEE - ABRITELRE
EGEBOREER  HEBRBREFIE - KR
SEBBBEEAERKEN  ANECEFREBRE
RMREREANHRES - P HRBEREEE
o REBERKNERZEN —WHPENE -

cninf%

www_cninfo.com.cn

EMEm



Annual Report 2020
—RCREER 23

Management Discussion and Analysis

Rechargeable Batteries and Photovoltaic Business

In terms of rechargeable batteries, the Group will continue
promoting the application of new technologies, expanding its
customer base, and gaining market shares in related fields. In
terms of photovoltaic business, the Group will seize the market
opportunity and lay a foundation for the new round of growth
using its premium products to keep an increasing market share at
home and abroad.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Profit attributable to Owners of the Parent
Company

During the Year, revenue increased by 26.02% as compared to
that of 2019, mainly attributable to increase in business volume
of automobiles sector. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company increased by 162% as compared to the previous
year, mainly attributable to the improvement of overall operating
efficiency and increase in gross profit of new products.

Segmental Information

The following charts set out comparisons of the Group’s revenue
by product categories for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2020:

Revenue Breakdown by Product Categories
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Revenue Breakdown by Locations of Customers
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During the Year, the Group'’s gross profit increased by 50.72% to
approximately RMB27,244 million. Gross profit margin increased
from approximately 14.84% in 2019 to approximately 17.75%
during the Year. The gross profit margin increased in comparison
with 2019, mainly attributable to increase in business volume of
automobiles sector.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, BYD generated operating cash inflow of
approximately RMB45,393 million, compared with operating
cash inflow of approximately RMB14,741 million in 2019. Cash
inflow of the Group during the Period was mainly arising from
the increase in cash generated from the sales of goods and
provision of services in operating activities. Total borrowings as
at 31 December 2020, including all bank loans and bonds, were
approximately RMB51,271 million, compared with approximately
RMB75,978 million as at 31 December 2019. The maturity profile
of the bank loans and bonds thereof spreads over a period of ten
years, with approximately RMB27,645 million repayable within
one year, approximately RMB23,380 million within the second
to the fifth years and approximately RMB246 million over five
years. The Group had adequate liquidity to meet its daily liquidity
management and capital expenditure requirements and control
internal operating cash flows.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, turnover period of
receivables (including trade receivables and trade receivable
financing, amounts due from associates and joint ventures,
amounts due from related parties) was approximately 141 days,
as compared to approximately 190 days for the same period in
2019, which was mainly due to the increase of trade receivables
balance in average was lower than that of sales revenue over the
same period. The inventory turnover period was approximately 83
days for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to about
92 days for the same period in 2019, which was mainly due to the
increase of inventory in average was lower than that of cost of
sales over the same period.

Please refer to notes 35 and 42 to the financial statements for
details of Financial Resources.

Capital Structure

The Group’s Financial Division is responsible for the Group’s
financial risk management which operates according to policies
implemented and approved by senior management. As at 31
December 2020, borrowings were primarily settled in RMB, while
cash and cash equivalents were primarily held in RMB and US
dollar. The Group plans to maintain an appropriate mix of equity
and debt to ensure an efficient capital structure during the Period.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s outstanding loans included
RMB loans and foreign currency loans and approximately 56%
(2019: 72%) of such outstanding loans were at fixed interest rates,
with the remaining at floating interest rates.
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The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt  RNEBEEBFERE R EE L K (A A EFHEE A
divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing #)EEHEER - AEBNREABRELEFRER
ratio as low as possible. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank B &L X - BEFFEEIET BIETMEMERIL
and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity KBIRENIBESZEY - AT QREB AEERE
represents equity attributable to owners of the parent. Therefore, # ° At AEBR_ZT_ZTF+-_A=+—0K
the gearing ratios of the Group was 69% and 124% as at 31 —ZE—HhF+-A=+—"HANEAREBBELEXHRA
December 2020 and 31 December 2019, respectively. 69% M 124% -
As at 31 December 2020, certain items of the Group’s land and R -ZE-ZTF+-A=+—H  AEBEUEEFE
buildings with a net carrying amount of RMB191,209 thousand (31 A AR#191,209Ft(ZZ2—hF+=A=+—
December 2019: RMB209,019 thousand) and transit equipment H : AR¥209,019F L) WL REEEEY &
with a net carrying amount of RMB1,781 thousand (31 December BRENFEAARK1,781F L (ZE—LF+=-A=
2019: RMB2,088 thousand) have been pledged as securities for +*EI C AE¥2,088F L) MyiE S T A(ERIEAE
the long term loans of RMB116,295 thousand (31 December 2019: B RHERARE116,2905F L (ZE—hF+=
RMB 132,102 thousand) granted to the Group, of which RMB6,675 H:Jr—El ARH132,102F ) - EF—FRE
thousand (31 December 2019: RMB7,091 thousand) was long HWRHERARKEE675F T (ZT—h&FE+=A
term loans due within a year. In addition, as at 31 December =+—H : AR¥7091F7T) o lt4h  R=_ZT=F
2020, a pledged bank deposit of RMB429,041 thousand ®+-HF=+—8 mMETEIEE - ff AERE
(2019: RMB837,921 thousand) and a restricted bank deposit % MHmMEMEIRITFRARSE429,041F T (=
of RMB277,491 thousand (2019: RMB137,865 thousand) were Z—Hh4F : AR¥837,921F0) RFRIBITERA
pledged for bank bills, guarantee deposits and others. RE277, 401 Fm (ZZE—hF : AR¥137,865F
TT) e
Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk HMEE B B
Most of the Group’s income and expenditure are settled in RMB ~ AEBKIOWARBETIHUARBRETEE -
and US dollar. During the Period, the Group did not experience  HiiR - ZISEII[EITMETE’J&EWﬁ%\ﬁ 5B
any significant difficulties in or impacts on its operations or ARBESHBREMEARE KL - EFHE 0 A
liquidity due to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The SEBEBERBINERMNEINETES @ TR E
directors believe that the Group has sufficient foreign exchange BT A S IMNERE ¥ AR -
to meet its own foreign exchange requirements and will adopt
practical measures to prevent exposure to exchange rate risk.
Employment, Training and Development BA BIRER
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately WZZE-ZF+-A=+—H AEEBEEAL22.43
224.3 thousand employees. During the Period, total staff cost BEEE - A E T AREHAEFE L XY
accounted for approximately 15.80% of the Group’s turnover. 15.80% - NEFEIREEN KR - BENEHHNTT
Employees’ remuneration was determined based on performance, ¥EfIETF4H FREMNRH - MESBER ST iR
qualifications and prevailing industry practices, with compensation & - RIEFEE TERRTZ - BEEHSEREILLAN
policies being reviewed on a regular basis. Bonuses were also & o ZEHIER) HEBEABES HHSE) -
awarded to employees, based on their annual performance
evaluation. Incentives were offered to encourage personal
motivation.
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Share Capital [N
As at 31 December 2020, the share capital of the Company was WR-Z-_ZTF+-A=+—H  AQARHKRADN
as follows: T
Number of Approximate
shares issued Percentage (%)
BITROBE HIEBE D (%)
A shares AR% 1,813,142,855 66.46
H shares HA% 915,000,000 33.54
Total B 2,728,142,855 100.00
Note: the Company successfully alloted and issued an aggregate Bia: KRR -—BE-—F— A -+ NBRNEER
of 133,000,000 new H shares on 28 January 2021, and the 21T A 133,000 000 /B FHE - FLE AL
shareholding structure after the placing is as follows: AEREZERE N T -
Number of Approximate
shares issued Percentage (%)
ERITROEE KA B D (%)
A shares AR 1,813,142,855 63.37
H shares HA% 1,048,000,000 36.63
Total Pk 2,861,142,855 100.00

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the period
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020. During the Period,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold
any of the Company'’s shares.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the reporting period, there was no significant investment
held, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.

In addition, BYD Semiconductor Company Limited (Lt anih-E g
&P B R AR (formerly known as “BYD Semiconductor Co., Ltd.”,
hereinafter referred to as “BYD Semiconductor”), a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Investment Agreement and the
Shareholders’ Agreement and appendices thereof and related
supplementary agreements (if any) with 14 and 30 investors
respectively on 26 May 2020 and 15 June 2020, to make a capital
increase of RMB2,699,999,999 in aggregate.
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In the First Round Capital Increase, approximately RMB76,050,059
has been included in the increased registered capital of BYD
Semiconductor and approximately RMB1,823,949,941 has
been be included in the capital reserve of BYD Semiconductor.
Upon the First Round Capital Increase, these 14 investors
obtained a total of approximately 20.21% equity interest in
BYD Semiconductor. In the Second Round Capital Increase,
approximately RMB32,021,077 has been included in the increased
registered capital of BYD Semiconductor and approximately
RMB767,978,922 has been be included in the capital reserve of
BYD Semiconductor. Upon the Second Round Capital Increase,
these 30 investors obtained a total of approximately 7.84% of
the enlarged equity interest in BYD Semiconductor. After the
completion of the Capital Increase, the registered capital of
BYD Semiconductor is approximately RMB408,268,736 and the
Company holds approximately 72.30% of the enlarged equity
interest in BYD Semiconductor after the Capital Increase. The
aforesaid introduction of strategic investors of BYD Semiconductor
doesn’t constitute discloseable transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. For more information,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 26 May 2020
and 15 June 2020.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Please refer to note 45 to the financial statements for details of
capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Please refer to note 43 to the financial statements for details of
contingent liabilities.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SOCIAL
SECURITY

During the reporting period, the Company had no significant
environmental protection or social security issues.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Wang Chuan-fu

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, aged 55, Chinese national with no right
of abode overseas, master's degree holder, senior engineer,
younger brother of Mr. Wang Chuan-fang and younger cousin
of Mr. Lv Xiang-yang. Mr. Wang graduated from Central South
University of Technology (4@ L¥ AE) (currently Central South
University (FREAZ)) in 1987 with a bachelor's degree majoring
in metallurgy physical chemistry, and then graduated from Beijing
Non-Ferrous Research Institute in the PRC (Bl A &L BHIE
#FT) in 1990 with a master's degree majoring in material science.
Mr. Wang held positions as vice supervisor in Beijing Non-Ferrous
Research Institute, general manager in Shenzhen Bi Ge Battery
Co. Limited (FYNTLIEEMBRAFMELIR). In February 1995,
he founded Shenzhen BYD Battery Company Limited (F3IITH
LM EEABRAR) (‘BYD Battery”) (became BYD Company
Limited on 11 June 2002) with Mr. Lv Xiang-yang and took the
position of general manager. He is the Chairman, an executive
Director and the President of the Company and is responsible
for the general operations of the Group and the development of
business strategies for the Group. He is a non-executive director
and the chairman of BYD Electronic (International) Company
Limited (Stock Code: 0285), the chairman of BYD Semiconductor
Company Limited (formerly known as “BYD Semiconductor Co.,
Ltd."”), a director of Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co.,
Ltd. ORYIEZFee)R/AEBRAR]) (formerly known as “Shenzhen
BYD Daimler New Technology Co., Ltd.” (&3IIILt o5 ith & 48 $h 3 £ 1l
AFRAR]), a director of Tianjin BYD Auto Co., Ltd. (KZEthari#/5
BEAMRAF]), a director of China Railway Engineering Consulting
Group Co., Ltd. (F# T2 =£AKEFRAA]), an independent
director of Renren Inc., and a director of Southern University of
Science and Technology of China (@ /5 Bl K£2).

Mr. Wang, being a technology expert, enjoyed special allowances
from the State Council. In June 2003, he was awarded the Star
of Asia by BusinessWeek. He was awarded with Mayor award
of Shenzhen in 2004, “The 2008 CCTV Man of the Year China
Economy Innovation Award”, Southern Guangdong Meritorious
Service Award in 2011, and Zayed Future Energy Prize Lifetime
Achievement Award in 2014 and Best Business Leader in China
in 2015, a founding member of the United Nations Development
Programme’s “Advisory Council for Sustainable Development” in
2016 (ZE—R"FHABMEHEZT FIREERBNZE S ALK
8), an “Outstanding Private Entrepreneur for the 40th Anniversary
of Reform and Opening Up in 2018" (=& — \FREMMEO+
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BFFHEERZEMZER), an “Outstanding Builder of Socialism with
Chinese Characteristics in the Fifth National Non-Public Economic
Sector in 2019” (ZE—NFEREZEERABHLEBEALEFTFHEH
BEdeTaREERE) and the winner of Xian's first “Mayor’s
Special Award” in 2020 (ZZ-ZTFRETTEHE ‘“TREHNE") and
the “Businessman of China” in 2020 awarded by the Fortune
Magazine (ZZ_ZF(HE) "FEFEREA"), “National Advanced
Person in the Private Economy for the Fight against COVID-19
Pandemic” (2B T A KI5 R &L LEREA) ete.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Lv Xiang-yang

Mr. Lv Xiang-yang, aged 59, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, bachelor's degree holder, economist and elder
cousin of Mr. Wang Chuan-fu. Mr. Lv worked at Chaohu Centre
Branch of the People’s Bank of China. In February 1995, he
founded Shenzhen BYD Battery Company Limited (ZYIHEepiE
EEARAT]) (became BYD Company Limited on 11 June 2002)
with Mr. Wang Chuan-fu. He is the Vice Chairman and a non-
executive Director of the Company and also the chairman of
Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Bt B REBER
‘A@]), chairman of Youngy Co., Ltd. (B2 D AR A A]), chairman
of Youngy Health Technology Co., Ltd. (BtiEfEERERMD AR
‘A@]), chairman of Onyx International Inc.(BINXAE BRI AR
‘A|]), chairman of Nanjing Regenecore Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
(ARBREREMEHEBRAR]), chairman of Guangdong Youngy
Financing Renting Company Limited (BERaFEREHEER A7),
a director of Anhua Agricultural Insurance Company Limited (%&
EE2RBARMABR AT, honorary chairman of Anhui Chamber
of Commerce in Guangdong province (EXEZ#EEE), honorary
chairman of Guangdong Manufacturers Association (R4 &k
¥12), honorary chairman of Guangdong Association for the
Promotion of Industrial Development (EEREEE%ZERERES) and
vice chairman of BYD Charity Foundation.
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EE  EEkeEEE

Xia Zuo-quan

Mr. Xia Zuo-quan, aged 58, Chinese national with no right
of abode overseas, master’s degree holder. Mr. Xia studied
computer science in Beijing Institute of Iron and Steel Engineering
(At REMEEELT ) (now known as University of Science & Technology
Beijing (At REHE A E)) from 1985 to 1987 and he graduated from
Guanghua School of Management of Peking University (Jt A2
FEFIBERT) with an MBA in 2007. Mr. Xia worked in the Hubei
branch of The People’s Insurance Company and joined BYD
Industries in 1997 and held positions as an executive Director and
Vice President of the Company. He is a non-executive director of
the Company and chairman of Shenzhen Zhengxuan Investment
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (FIITIEHKERBRRA),
Zhengxuan Qianhai Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.
ORIV EEF R B EREESEIE AR AF) and Beijing Zhengxuan
Investment Co., Ltd. (At RIEFIKREBREIEAA]), a director of
Shenzhen UBTECH Robotics Co., Ltd. (&YIITEXERHE AR A A)),
a director of Shenzhen Uni-Fortune Supply Chain Service Co., Ltd.
(ORYITE A M L HEEREIEEMR AF]), a director of Beijing Lingyi
Space Technology Limited (It REZZ=RHEHEABRAF]), chairman
of Annuo Youda Gene Technology (Beijing) Co. Ltd. (LB EE
ERE (J53R) AR A F]), an independent director of China Baofeng
(International) Limited (FREEEREHFRAF) (formerly known
as “Mastercraft International Holdings Limited” (55{iE BB 2%
B ~7])), an independent director of China Yuhua Education
Corporation Limited (FBIFE#HEFEEHERAF), chairman of
Shenzhen Dichuanghui Technology Limited (&Yl A& R AR
A |]), vice chairman of BYD Charity Foundation and vice chairman
of Shenzhen Lianxia Charity Foundation (#JITTEEZZES@).

Shenzhen
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Cai Hong-ping

Mr. Cai Hong-ping, aged 67, Chinese (Hong Kong) national,
bachelor’s degree holder. Mr. Cai was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 8
September 2020. Mr. Cai graduated from Fudan University (58
KE) in 1988 with a bachelor’'s degree in mass communications.
Mr. Cai served as an office director of Sinopec Shanghai
Petrochemical Company Limited (F B At E&ABIETRDABRA
A]), member of the Overseas Listing Team for Chinese Enterprises
under the Restructuring Committee of the State Council (B
PR E R RGN ETIEE/\H), the chairman of the
Joint Committee of Board Secretaries for H Share Companies in
the PRC, managing director of the investment banking division
of Peregrine Investments Holdings Limited, chairman of the
investment banking division of UBS AG in Asia and chairman
of Deutsche Bank (fEE&3IRTT) in the Asia Pacific region. He
currently serves as the chairman and founding partner of AGIC
(E®EX), and an independent director of China Eastern
Airlines Corporation Limited (FFEIER FZERHBERAR]), COSCO
SHIPPING Development Co., Ltd. (F&/&EZRERMN AR A A]) and
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. ( H/&#HEERERTT
R BRAR).

Zhang Min

Mr. Zhang Min, aged 44, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, doctoral degree holder and professor of accounting.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 8 September 2020. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Beijing Wuzi University (It Z#&E7) in 1999
with a bachelor’s degree in management majoring in accounting,
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (7 F8 B & BUE
KE) in 2005 with a master's degree in management majoring
in accounting, and from Renmin University of China (FEIAR
KE) in 2008 with a doctoral degree in management majoring
in accounting. He also completed his post-doctoral training in
Peking University Guanghua School of Management in 2010. Mr.
Zhang currently serves as the accounting professor, supervisor
for Ph.D. candidates and accounting director of Business School,
Renmin University of China as well as an independent director of
Shanghai Fullhan Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (L/8EHME T %
ABRAF]), Beijing HanjianHeshan Pipeline Co., Ltd. (3b R 1L
EEBRMABRAT), SDIC Capital Co., Ltd. (BIEEARBRHDBR AR,
and Beijing SPC Environment Protection Tech Co., Ltd. (3t FE#T
REBEMRHBRAF).
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BEE  EEkaEEE

Jiang Yan-bo

Mr. Jiang Yan-bo, aged 55, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, doctoral degree holder, professor of law. Mr.
Jiang was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 8 September 2020. Mr. Jiang graduated
from Jiangxi College of Finance and Economics (/I 788/ 45E36t)
(currently known as Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics
CIPEEEKE)) with a bachelor’s degree in economics in 1987,
from China University of Political Science and Law (FFBIBUE KE2)
with a second bachelor’s degree in law in 1989, and from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics with a doctoral degree in
economics in 2007. Mr. Jiang is currently a professor at the Law
School of Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and an
independent director of Guangdong Dowstone Technology Co.,
Ltd. (BERBEBIEMRMNDERAF) and a director of Shenzhen
Pagoda Industrial (Group) Corporation Limited (FJII5 REE % (&
) RHBERAR).

SUPERVISORS
Dong Jun-qing

Mr. Dong Jun-ging, aged 87, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, bachelor's degree holder, and a senior engineer
at professor level. Mr. Dong graduated from Non-Ferrous Metal
and Gold Faculty in Moscow, USSR (5l EHR AR BHEES &
Bt) in 1959, with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in aluminum and
magnesium metallurgy, and obtained the title of USSR engineer.
Mr. Dong lectured at Non-Ferrous Metallurgy Faculty of the
Northeast University in the PRC (FREI®RILRE) and researched
at Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute and was engaged in
research and development work in our Company. He has been a
Supervisor and the chairman of the Supervisory Committee since
July 2002.
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Li Yong-zhao

Mr. Li Yong-zhao, aged 60, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, bachelor's degree holder, and a researcher
level senior engineer. Mr. Li graduated from Xi'an Institute of
Technology (A% T2&5%) in August 1982 with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical manufacturing technology and equipment.
Mr. Li worked as technician, office head, deputy director, director,
deputy plant manager and held other posts in state-owned Factory
615 of China Industries Group Corporation (FEIEsSTHEER
Al). He also acted as the general manager of the Sino-foreign joint
venture named Baoji Xingbao Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. (&%t
EBENT), plant manager of state-owned Factory 843 of China
Industries Group Corporation since May 2002, general manager of
Xi'an Northern Qinchuan Machinery Corporation Co., Ltd. (Fa% 3t
7 E) | T2 AR A 7)), the chairman of Xi'an Northern Qinchuan
Company Ltd. (Fa%1t75 &) B AR A 7)) since October 2010. He
has been a Supervisor of the Company since June 2008 and now
serves as as the member of science and technology committee
of China North Industries Group Corporation (Fait TE&£EBE AR A
A]), and the executive director, Party secretary of Xi'an Northern
Qinchuan Company Ltd.

Wang Zhen

Ms. Wang Zhen, aged 45, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, bachelor’s degree holder. Ms. Wang graduated from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (FERINEINE KE) in
the PRC in 1998, majoring in Spanish and obtained a bachelor
degree. Ms. Wang joined Shenzhen BYD Battery Company
Limited (RINTLLEE@EEZEFRAF) (became BYD Company
Limited on 11 June 2002) in 1998 and served as a manager in
overseas Ministry of Commerce, officer of the President’s office,
director of the rail transit industry office, Secretary-General of
BYD Charity Foundation and general manager of BYD Company
(Pingshan District). She is a Supervisor and the general manager
of Human Resources Office of the Company, a supervisor of
Shenzhen Qianhai Green Transportation Co., Ltd. (&I AT
FEREMAMRAT), a supervisor of East Shenzhen Sky Rail
Investment Construction Co., Ltd (FYIEBEHIZREEZRBER A
Al), a supervisor of China Metallurgical New Energy Technology
Co., Ltd (FIRImAFTEEREHZBRAA), a supervisor of Chengdu
Shudu BYD New Energy Vehicles Co., Ltd. (S #B&#RLE am s #T AL R
AEARAT]), a supervisor of Yinchuan Sky Rail Operation Co.,
Ltd. (BRI EEE LA A F]), a supervisor of Shantou City Sky Rail
Transportation Co., Ltd. (GUEBETEBZ @A PR A7), a supervisor of
Jining City Sky Rail Transportation Co., Ltd. (EEMEZNIBAER
~A)).
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Yang Dong-sheng (resigned with effect from 25 March 2021)

Mr. Yang Dong-sheng, aged 42, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, master’'s degree holder, and a senior engineer. Mr.
Yang graduated from Northeastern University (81tK£) in March
2005 with master's degree. Mr. Yang joined the Company in 2005
and has held positions including senior engineer in Automotive
Engineering Research Institute, vice manager in the Chassis Division
of the Automotive Engineering Research Institute, senior business
secretary of the President, general manager of the Product and
Technical Planning Division, and is a supervisor of the Company and
the dean of the Company’s Product Planning and New Automotive
Technology Research Institute during the Period. Mr. Yang resigned
as a staff representative supervisor of the Company with effect from
25 March 2021.

Tang Mei (appointed with effect from 25 March 2021)

Ms. Tang Mei, aged 38, is a Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas and a bachelor's degree holder. Ms. Tang
graduated from Central South University (FREIAZ) in June 2005,
with a bachelor’'s degree in English. Ms. Tang joined the Company
in 2005 and held positions as secretary of the President, a
manager in Cultural Propaganda Department of the Group, a
manager in reception center of the Group, executive officer of
BYD Charity Foundation. She is currently the vice officer of the
President’s office and she was appointed as a staff representative
supervisor of the Company with effect from 25 March 2021.
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Huang Jiang-feng

Mr. Huang Jiang-feng, aged 41, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, bachelor’s degree holder. Mr. Huang graduated
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (7F /8 B & BUE K 22)
in 2003 with a bachelor’'s degree in administration. Mr. Huang held
positions in Sinopec Chenzhou Petroleum Branch in Hunan (FEIA
(LR AR DA A]), Dongguan Hsu Fu Chi Foods Co., Ltd. (33
%EZRARMBARAR]) and Guangzhou Office (&N & %EF) of Guosen
Securities. He has been working in Youngy Investment Holding
Group Co., Ltd. (B EZEREEBR A R]) since August 2008, and
has been a supervisor of the Company since September 2014 and
now serves as a director and vice president of Youngy Investment
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (RUEIREZEREEBR AR, general
manager of Shenzhen Qianhai Youngy Financial Services Company
Limited CFIIBTERES BAREHRAF]), a supervisor of Shenzhen
Qianhai Youngy High Technology Investment Company Limited (%
BT ERE S AT E AR A R]), a supervisor of Shenzhen Youngy
Internet Financial Services Company Limited (F3II885E B B4 € B AR
%A /AF]), general manager of Shenzhen Qianhai Youngy Supply
Chain Factoring Services Co., Ltd (FRIIFT/EG R EERIERES
fR/2d]), director and manager of Guangdong Youngy Financing
Renting Company Limited (EBXREiEREHEHBRAF), manager
of Guangdong Youngy Financing Service Company Limited (B
EhEREE RSB R A A]), chairman of Guangdong Youngy Financing
Renting Company Limited (EXRetiERtEHERRAF]), manager of
Guangdong Youngy Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.(E R g
[EFEIRAMRAR]), director of Shenzhen Youngy Asset Management
Co., Ltd (FYIgiEEEEE AR A7) and chairman of the supervisory
committee of Youngy Co., Ltd (BN BR A F)).
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BEE  EEkaEEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Li Ke

Ms. Li Ke, aged 51, Chinese national with the right of abode
in the US, bachelor's degree holder. Ms. Li graduated from
Fudan University in 1992 with a bachelor’'s degree in statistics.
Ms. Li worked at Asia Resources (2/1&JR) and joined the
Group in September 1996. She served various positions
including Marketing Manager and General Sales Manager,
executive director and chief executive officer of BYD Electronic
(International) Company Limited (thas@EF (EE) AR A F)
(Stock Code: 0285) and is a Vice President of the Company and a
director of BYD Charity Foundation.

Lian Yu-bo

Mr. Lian Yu-bo, aged 57, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, master's degree holder, and a professorate
senior engineer. Mr. Lian graduated from Nanjing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics (FREMZEMAARE) in July 1986,
with a bachelor's degree majoring in aircraft manufacturing
engineering. In September 2000, he obtained a professional
MBA degree from Nanjing University. Mr. Lian worked in China
Automotive Research Center (FREISEMFTH L)), and served as
the chief engineer of SAIC Motor Yizheng Automobile Co., Ltd. (E
AEEEBUTEAMRAR]), and executive deputy general manager
of Shanghai Tongji Tongjie Automotive Design Company (/% &%
FHEAERETAA]). Mr. Lian joined the Company in February 2004
and is a Senior Vice President of the Company, president of the
Automotive Engineering Research Institute and chairman of Fudi
Jinggong Co.,Ltd. (3@ T HBR A F]). He is also a director of BYD
TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Ltd. (frabid @M EFERIFEAR Q)
and Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd. (&I
HEER/SE AR A R)) and a director of BYD Charity Foundation.
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He Long

Mr. He Long, aged 49, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, master's degree holder. Mr. He graduated from Peking
University in 1999 and obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science
in applied chemistry, an LLB and a master's degree in inorganic
chemistry. Mr. He joined the Group in July 1999 and held
positions as quality control manager of Division 1 and Division
2, deputy general manager of Division 2 and vice-chairman of
Foshan Jinhui Hi-Tech Optoelectronic Material Co., Ltd. (1L &
ESREMEARAT). He is a Vice President of the Company,
CEO of Battery Division, general manager of Division 2, a director
of Tibet Shigatse Zhabuye Lithium High-Tech Co., Ltd. (FE# B %
Bz M ERSE S S R B R A F), a director of Qinghai Salt Lake BYD
Resources Development Co., Ltd. (588 #tL @& RAZERA
A]), a director of China Metallurgical New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd (IR ARFTEEREHE AR AR]) and a director of BYD Charity
Foundation.

Liu Huan-ming

Mr. Liu Huan-ming, aged 58, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, master’'s degree holder, and a senior engineer.
Mr. Liu graduated from Northeastern Institute of Technology (&
b TEBT) (currently known as Northeastern University (E1bKE))
in 1988 with a bachelor’'s degree and later a master’'s degree in
Metallurgical physical chemistry. Mr. Liu worked for the Iron and
Steel Institute of Panzhihua Iron and Steel Company in Sichuan (I
JIZE R FE 8 8 A B8 S 75 P2 ) and Benxi Iron and Steel Company in
Liaoning (EZEZAZ{#E A F]). He joined the Group in March 1997
and served as a general manager of Human Resources Office
and Department of New Energy Vehicle Direct Sale Management.
He is currently a Vice-President of the Company, and a general
manager of Division 3 of the Rail Department of the Company, and
a director of BYD Charity Foundation.
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Luo Hong-bin

Mr. Luo Hong-bin, aged 55, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, master’s degree holder and a professorate senior
engineer. Mr. Luo graduated from Air Force Engineering University
in 1990, with a master's degree in computer application. Mr. Luo
joined the Company in October 2003. He served various posts
including manager of the third Electronics Sub-division of Division
15, director of the Institute of Electric vehicles, president of the
Electric Power Research Institute, general manager of Division
14, and general manager of Division 17. He currently is a Senior
Vice President of the Company, the chairman of Fudi Power Co.,
Ltd. (F#BHARAQF), a director of Beijing Hualin Loading
Co., Ltd. (At REMEFEBEFRARF]) and a director of BYD Charity
Foundation.

Wang Chuan-fang

Mr. Wang Chuan-fang, aged 60, Chinese national with no right of
abode overseas, is the elder brother of Mr. Wang Chuan-fu. Mr.
Wang joined BYD Industries in August 1996 and held positions
including Personnel Manager and Logistics Manager. He currently
is a Vice President of the Company, general manager of Logistics
Division, general manager of Division 22 and a director of
Yinchuan Sky Rail Operation Co., Ltd. ($8)I|Z#EZLER A R]) and
a director of BYD Charity Foundation.

Ren Lin

Mr. Ren Lin, aged 54, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, bachelor’s degree holder, and a senior engineer. Mr.
Ren graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in 1989, with a
bachelor's degree majoring in mechanical design, manufacturing
and automation. He went to Japan, Tsinghua University (BZ X
&) and Beijing Institute of Technology (Jt 3 T K£8) for multiple
times for further study during his terms of office. Mr. Ren once
worked in Shaanxi Qinchuan Motor Co., Ltd. (BEEZ)IRER
[RE{E/AR]). He joined the Company in January 2003 and held
positions as executive Vice President of Automotive Engineering
Institute (VR T#2FT). He currently is a Vice President of the
Company, general manager of Division 21 and a director of BYD
Charity Foundation.
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Wang Jie

Mr. Wang Jie, aged 57, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, bachelor's degree holder. Mr. Wang graduated from
Xi'an Institute of Gold Mining and Construction (FA% )6 & 25 E0R)
(now known as Xi'an University of Architecture and Technology (78
LEERHEKE)) in 1988 with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering,
majoring in Industry Enterprises Automatisation; Mr. Wang once
worked in Jiaxing Metallurgy Manufacture Factory of Metallurgy
Department (A& #5EAS#MMR) and other institutions. Mr.
Wang joined the Group in September 1996, he served various
positions including sales manager, sales director and deputy
general manager of the Company’s Sales & Marketing Division.
He currently is a Vice President of the Company and the CEO of
Commercial Vehicles Division of the Company.

He Zhi-qi

Mr. He Zhi-qi, aged 49, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, master's degree holder. Mr. He graduated from
Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry Chinese Academy of
Sciences (R R RHFEACEMIAT) in 1998, with a master’s
degree majoring in inorganic chemistry, and then graduated
from China Europe International Business School (BT pE%E 2
Ep7) with an MBA in 2010. Mr. He joined Shenzhen BYD Battery
Company Limited (RIITELEHEEERAF]) (became BYD
Company Limited on 11 June 2002) in July 1998 and served
various posts including central research manager, quality control
manager, general manager of Division 4 and general manager
of Purchasing Office of the Company. He currently is a Vice
President of the Company and COO of Passenger Car Division of
the Company.
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Li Qian

Mr. Li Qian, aged 48, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, master's degree holder. Mr. Li graduated from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics ((TAAE & AZ) in 1997, with
a bachelor’'s degree in economics. He graduated from Guanghua
School of Management of the Peking University (1bmKE %
EEELT) with an MBA in July 2016. Mr. Li was the auditor and
business adviser of PwC China and Arthur Andersen, respectively,
and the securities business representative of ZTE Corporation (¥
BB B AR AR]). Mr. Li joined the Company in August 2005
and is the secretary to the Board, Company Secretary and general
manager of Investment Department. He is also a member of the
first GEM Listing Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, a joint
company secretary of BYD Electronic (International) Company
Limited (bb2es# 5 F (BIFR ) AR A R)) (stock code: 0285), a director
of BYD Semiconductor Company Limited (Lt 25 SN AR A
A]), a director of Tibet Shigatse Zhabuye Lithium High-Tech Co.,
Ltd. (FafE AR R mERE E = BHE AR A R]), chairman of Shenzhen
BYD Electric Car Investment Co., Ltd. (#YILLenEE)THILER
fR 72 ®]), chairman of Energy Storage Power Station (Hubei) Co.,
Ltd. (FEEEE UL (8dE) BFRAA]), a director of Meihao Chuxing
(Hangzhou) Automotive Technology Co., Ltd. (ZE&HH 7T (F)
RERHEERZAT]), a director of Shenzhen Electric Power Sales
Co., Ltd. (RIITTFEEEEE AR AR, and a director of Shenzhen
Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd.(RIIf 5 2 /5= S BR A ).

Zhou Ya-lin

Ms. Zhou Ya-lin, aged 44, Chinese national with no right of abode
overseas, bachelor’s degree holder. Ms. Zhou graduated from
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics (JIABEAE) in
1999, with a bachelor's degree in economics. Ms. Zhou joined
the Group in March 1999 and is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. She is also the chief financial officer of BYD Electronic
(International) Company Limited (tbas@EEF (EE) AR A F)
(Stock Code: 0285), a director of BYD Semiconductor Company
Limited (bbEn@+BERM AR AF]), chairman of BYD Auto
Finance Company Limited (tb35:@/9E B ER A A]), a supervisor
of Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd. (EIIES
FELRAEBE AR A A]), a director of Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive
Parts Co., Ltd. ORIIHSTRAEFHFARAF) and a director of
BYD Charity Foundation, etc.
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EE ESKkENEEE
DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR #H&EHAEE ESTSREEASRH
MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD
Total
remuneration
received from
the Company
(Unit: RMB’ 000)
N AREH
Name Position held within the Company Status of employment RMAE
Be REARBEENES R (Bfy: AR¥TT)
Wang Chuan-fu Chairman, Executive Director and President [ncumbent 5,336
TER BER UES 23 R
Lv Xiang-yang Vice-chairman and non-executive Director Incumbent 200
Ak BEER FRNES Rt
Xia Zuo-quan Non-executive Director Incumbent 200
BE2 FNTES B
Wang Zi-dong Independent non-executive Director Resigned (effective from 8 September 2020) 138
FFE BUEHTES BE(EZZ24NANAREEL)
Zou Fei Independent non-executive Director Resigned (effective from 8 September 2020) 138
PR BUFRTES BE(BEZZZZFNAN\BREE)
Zhang Ran Independent non-executive Director Resigned (effective from 8 September 2020) 138
RA BUEHTES BE(E-Z-ZFNANAREE)
Cai Hong-ping Independent non-executive Director Incumbent (effective from 8 September 2020) 62
ZHT BUEHTES RE(BZZ-ZFNANARER)
Zhang Min Independent non-executive Director Incumbent (effective from 8 September 2020) 62
R BUFRTES RE(BZZZZFNAN\BRER)
Jiang Yan-bo Independent non-executive Director Incumbent (effective from 8 September 2020) 62
BEK BUEHTES RE(BZZZZFNA\BRER)
Dong Jun-qging Supervisor and chairman of the supervisory committee  Incumbent 100
BN EF EFeIR B
Li Yong-zhao Supervisor [ncumbent 100
Fk4l S Rt
Huang Jiang-feng Supervisor Incumbent 100
BIL# E=S Rt
Wang Zhen Supervisor Incumbent 3,521
1% £ Bt
Yang Dong-sheng Supervisor Resigned (effective from 25 March 2021) 2,499
BRE E= BT (A2 —F=-A-thARET)
LiKe Vice president Incumbent 8,173
ExD) glies Rt
Lian Yu-bo Vice president Incumbent 6,829
RER ElFGEs Bt
chni
EE
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Total
remuneration
received from

the Company
(Unit: RMB’ 000)
fenRBEH
Name Position held within the Company Status of employment HMEE
i REARBEENERE R (Bfr: AR T7)
He Long Vice president Incumbent 5,947
fars Bl B
Liu Huan-ming Vice president [ncumbent 4,832
Bl ket R
Luo Hong-bin Vice president Incumbent 7,378
38 glias Rt
Wang Chuan-fang Vice president Incumbent 4,595
TER gl B
Ren Lin Vice president [ncumbent 4,678
fEH gl B
He Zhi-qi Vice president Incumbent 3,732
&S gl Rt
Chen Gang Vice president Resigned (effective from 14 April 2020) 940
BRI gl BE(E-Z-ZFMATMARER)
Wang Jie Vice president Incumbent 5,298
T Bl B
Li Qian Secretary to the Board, Company Secretary Incumbent 2,786
Ex BEZENE  RANE Rt
Zhou Ya-lin Chief Financial Officer Incumbent 3,778
[EE gt Rt
Total - - 71,622
&%
cninf%
EMEiR
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The Board believes that good corporate governance is an
essential element in enhancing the confidence of current and
potential shareholders, investors, employees, business partners
and the community as a whole. To this end, we strive to promote
and uphold the highest standard of corporate governance.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices
to comply with all the provisions and most of the recommended
best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) except for
the deviation from the code provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7.

Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Wang Chuan-fu is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board considers that
this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company. The
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations of the
Board, which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals
and meets regularly to discuss issues affecting operations of the
Group. The Board believes that this structure is conducive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Group to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently. The Board has full
confidence in Mr. Wang and believes that this appointment to the
posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is beneficial to the
business prospects of the Company.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings. Given some independent non-executive directors and
non-executive directors were unable to travel and had other
important business engagement as a result of COVID-19 outbreak
during relevant periods, not all of them attended the annual
general meeting held on 23 June 2020 and extraordinary general
meetings held on 8 September 2020 and 10 December 2020.

During the reporting period, except for the deviation from code
provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7 as explained above, the Directors are
of the opinion that the Company had complied with all applicable
provisions of the Code.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B (1) of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Accountable to the Shareholders, the Board of Directors is
collectively responsible for formulating the strategic business
direction of the Group and setting objectives for management,
overseeing its performance and assessing the effectiveness
of management strategies. The Board is also responsible for,
and has during the Year performed the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Code (including the
determining of the corporate governance policy of the Company).

DIRECTORS

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors.
There is one executive Director who is the President, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
directors. Detailed biographies outlining each individual Director’s
range of specialist experience and suitability of the successful
long-term running of the Group are set out on pages 30 to 34 of
this annual report.

The Group believes that its executive and non-executive directors
composition is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. All Directors are
aware of their collective and individual responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill and
diligence, contributing to the successful performance of the Group
for the Year under review.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
as required under the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent. As at the
date of this annual report, the years of service of all independent
non-executive directors are less than 9. Should the Board
wish to seek for the further appointments of any independent
non-executive directors serving more than 9 years from the
Shareholders, separate resolutions will be proposed to the
Directors and the reasons to justify their independence despite
of the length of their services will be contained in relevant papers
to the Shareholders in accordance with code provision A.4.3 in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management with the extent of this insurance being reviewed
each year.
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The Board met twenty-two times this year to discuss the Group's
overall strategy, operation, financial performance and review the
status of regulatory compliance. The Board also ensures that it
is supplied in a timely manner with all necessary information in
a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its
duties. All Board meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which
a schedule of matter is specifically addressed to the Board for
its decision. Topics discussed at these Board meetings include,
among others, quarterly, interim and annual results; (re) election
of (existing) new Directors and supervisors, recommendations on
the remuneration of Directors and supervisors, recommendations
of auditors, approval of major capital project; dividend policies;
and other significant operational and financial matters.

The Directors decide on corporate strategies, approve overall
business plans and supervise the Group’s financial performance,
management and organization on behalf of the shareholders.
Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the Group's
management included the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for the Board’s approval before public reporting;
implementation of strategies approved by the Board; the
implementation of internal control procedures; and the ensuring
of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
regulations and rules.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, each
director and each supervisor are appointed for a term of 3 years. In
addition, in accordance with the Guiding Opinions on Establishing
the Independent Director System in Listed Companies issued
by CSRC, an independent director shall not hold the office for
more than six years. The respective term of office of the Directors
being Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, Mr. Lv Xiang-yang, Mr. Xia Zuo-quan,
Mr. Wang Zi-dong, Mr. Zou Fei and Ms. Zhang Ran expired on 8
September 2020. Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, Mr. Lv Xiang-yang and Mr.
Xia Zuo-quan have been nominated as candidates for the Directors
of the Company by the Board and the Nomination Committee
of the Company, and were re-elected by the shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 8
September 2020. The former independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Wang Zi-dong, Mr. Zou Fei and Ms.
Zhang Ran had retired and ceased to be the independent non-
executive directors of the Company at the aforesaid extraordinary
general meeting. Mr. Cai Hong-ping, Mr. Zhang Min and Mr. Jiang
Yan-bo were appointed as the independent non-executive directors
of the Company after the end of the aforesaid extraordinary
general meeting. In accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association and related Board resolutions, each Board member
and each member of the Supervisory Committee are appointed for
a term of 3 years, being the period from 8 September 2020 to 7
September 2023.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF EEFESXRRE
DIRECTORS
Newly appointed Directors of the Company will be provided with ARAFEEZER - AQAFIRERBERETENM

B UNEDESTE2ERARRKLE  EBNME
AR EmRRAERBERERRENES
BE UYRHEDEEEBRARREBREZER
MER  RERBUIFNTEERIETRE K

relevant induction materials to assist them to fully understand
the Company’s operations, business and governance policies
and their responsibilities and duties as a director under the
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations, such as

the Listing Rules. They will also be provided with materials RQARNEHEMBYIFRTESTETEMER TR
to help them to gain insights in the Company’s business and EBIEEHETADER RBRELEETARE R BE2
operation. In order to ensure adequate performance of duties EIFEHREERFE  URERTHHSHH LR
by the independent non-executive directors, the Company will  #& » A T3IEH B EEEZHFFS
also arrange on-site visits and sufficient communication with
the management for the independent non-executive directors.
Pursuant to the corporate governance requirements, the Directors
participated in continuous professional development programme
to develop and update their knowledge and skills. The particulars
of the trainings of each Director are as follows:
Training/
seminars
participated Reading
s8I materials
Name of Director EEMR Bneg B R AT R
Executive Director HITES
Wang Chuan-fu TEE V Vv
Non-executive Director FHTES
Lv Xiang-yang &[5 vV Vv
Xia Zuo-quan Etker vV v
Independent non-executive director BIFHTES
Wang Zi-dong FFE
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BZZEZZFNA/N\BRREE)
Zou Fei a7
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BZZEZZFNANBEET)
Zhang Ran IR A
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=FTFANBRET)
Cai Hong-ping B V v
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=ZF A N\BRER)
Zhang Min IR K v Vv
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=FFhANBRER)
Jiang Yan-bo H%E/Bi Vv v
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BZZT=FFANBRER)
cnint%
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BOARD MEETINGS

To ensure the highest attendance of Directors, written notices
are sent to all Directors 14 days before a regular board meeting;
written notices are sent to all Directors 2 days before a provisional
board meeting. The meeting agenda is set in consultation with
members of the Board. The Board held twenty-two meetings in
2020. The attendance of individual Director at the Board meetings
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as well as general meetings in 2020 is set out below:

EEEER

RTREZRSNESHFEX  THEFEEENT
MAAMAEEBENEES  BHEETTANMK
AIAEEABNEES - FRARNEAEETIKE
BHEE R-_F_TFHBET_t-_REFEE

%-EEN-T-TFES
NHEERIIT -

T
BH B R

ZN IR KRG E

Annual Extraordinary
Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meetings
Members of the Board EEgRE EEgeR RERBFERE REBFIARE
Executive Director HITESE
Wang Chuan-fu FERE 22/22 11 2/2
Non-executive Director FHTES
Lv Xiang-yang = [R5 22/22 1/1 1/2
Xia Zuo-quan B 22/22 0/1 1/2
Independent non-executive director BAFHTES
Wang Zi-dong (resigned with FFE(AZZTZZF 14/22 11 0/2
effect from 8 September 2020) HANBREEET)
Zou Fei (resigned with PR(AE=ZZT=_ZTF 14/22 11 0/2
effect from 8 September 2020) NANBEEEE)
Zhang Ran (resigned with KRBT ZTF 14/22 11 0/2
effect from 8 September 2020) NANBHEEET)
Cai Hong-ping Z2RV (B2 ZF 8/22 0/1 0/2
(in office from 8 September 2020) NANBEER)
Zhang Min R (BT _ZF 8/22 0/1 0/2
(in office from 8 September 2020) NANBRER)
Jiang Yan-bo BER(BZZZZF 8/22 0/1 1/2
(in office from 8 September 2020) NANBBER)
cninf%
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In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has set
up a number of committees, including:

- the Audit Committee;

- the Remuneration Committee;
- the Nomination Committee; and
- the Strategy Committee.

Each Committee reports regularly to the Board, addressing
major issues and findings with valuable recommendations for the
decision making of the Board. The particulars of these Committees
are set out hereunder.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

One of the primary duties of the Audit Committee is to review the
financial reporting process and the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. As at 31 December 2020, Audit
Committee consists of three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Cai Hong-ping, Mr. Zhang Min and Mr. Jiang Yan-bo,
and a non-executive director, Mr. Lv Xiang-yang, with Mr. Zhang
Min as the chairman. Meetings were convened by the Company’s
Audit Committee and the Company’s auditors to review the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group and to
discuss auditing, internal control, risk management and financial
reporting matters before recommending them to the Board for
approval.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the
guidelines set by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Listing Rules and the provisions of the Code.
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The Audit Committee held six meetings in 2020 to review the RZZE-ZTF  BREZELRITANDHE  UEH
internal and external audit findings, the accounting principles ﬁB&?\\a‘B%ﬁE@%fﬁ C AEEEAR S ER
and practices adopted by the Group, Listing Rules and K& « B EREINIARE - 2RBINBIZEENFT
statutory compliance, deliberate its relationship, remuneration JFBTH T{ER @ Fid WEINTZEATRIE - EB&
and appointment terms and independence with the external REFKERRBILM @ UHEZENSETINBIZE
auditor with reference to its work performance and to make FHIAESSIREED  URTwHER - RE0EEE -
recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the RBREELRVBRESHE(BEEXEE_T—NF
reappointment of the external auditor, as well as to discuss +TZA=Z+—BHULIFERECEZEZFEELE B
auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial Z-Z—AF+-_A=+—HULFE HE-Z=
reporting matters (including auditing the announcement in relation ZHF=ZA=+—HIt=@7  -HE=-ZT=-% E/\
to the unaudited annual results of the Company for the year Z=Z+HUIEARNEARHEZE-"Z-_ZFAA=+HIN
ended 31 December 2019, and the financial statements for the fAAMMERE) LAESSHBIE @ KRBT
year ended 31 December 2019, the three months ended 31 March B TR EMABE - ERXENHEREHIIWT ¢
2020, the six months ended 30 June 2020 and the nine months
ended 30 September 2020), before recommending them to the
Board for approval, and performed its other duties under the
Code. The individual attendance of its members of the meetings is
set out as follows:
Number of
Committee
Meetings
Attended Attendance
HEZEE Rate
Member of the Audit Committee EREEENE BER™ HE =R
Lv Xiang-yang Sl 4 100%
Zhang Ran (chairman) RN (EFE) 4 100%
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=ZFhANBRET)
Wang Zi-dong FFE 4 100%
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=FFhANBRET)
Zou Fei ;R 4 100%
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BZZE=TFNANBEBET)
Zhang Min (chairman) RE(EFE) 2 100%
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=ZFhANBRER)
Cai Hong-ping FOHF 2 100%
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=FFhANBRER)
Jiang Yan-bo BEE=p51 2 100%
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=TFANBRBER)
cninf %
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors established a Remuneration Committee on
27 June 2005. The primary role of the Remuneration Committee is
to regularly review human resource management policies, make
recommendations on the remuneration packages, compensation
and benefit plans of Directors and senior executives, as well as
setting performance goals for senior management of the Group.
As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee comprises
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, a non-executive
director, Mr. Xia Zuo-quan, and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Cai Hong-ping, Mr. Zhang Min and Mr. Jiang
Yan-bo, with Mr. Cai Hong-ping as the chairman.

an executive Director,

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed its terms of reference,
which is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, in 2020 to comply with the Code.

In terms of the summary of the work of the Remuneration
Committee, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings in
2020 to, among others, assess the performance of executive
Directors and review the remuneration of Directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Group. The individual attendance
of its members of the meeting is set out as follows:

FMZEESE

BEgC TRFANAZTEAKYEFHEZE
g %ﬁm%iAEﬁIx%@EEﬁﬂﬁRﬂ/\j}éf/ﬁE.
BHEEK  HESERaRTBRAENTMWAES - @E
RENGEREEE D/(&%‘Jﬁzl»‘%@%?&%ﬁ@/\
EMNFXBEERE - RZE_TF+_A=+—H %
WEEGRRE - 2R TESTEBR/LE —%3F$ﬂ
TEFEEREE  R=ZBBIIFNTEEFEHRT
S RBEERBEREA  MERAFEEL T
A

R-Z-ZF  FWZE e ERESE (X
BREGSERBIMEARRMUEER) - LWFTET
U

FMZEemERESATEH R_F_FF  HM
ié\aﬁgﬁnu\a% A (EmBRE)FImRiTES
MERBEREHAREES EERAREEARN
¥rB o ERCB HE R

Number of
Committee
Meetings
Attended Attendance
HEZSE Rate
Member of the Remuneration Committee FMESENE SRRH =
Wang Chuan-fu TEE 2 100%
Xia Zuo-quan B2 2 100%
Zou Fei (chairman) B (x ) 2 100%
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=FFhANBRET)
Wang Zi-dong E?% 2 100%
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BEZZE=TFNANBBET)
Zhang Ran iR A 2 100%
(resigned with effect from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=ZFhANBRET)
Cai Hong-ping (chairman) %//\1(1}*) - -
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BZZ=FFhANBRER)
Zhang Min ?E@ﬁ( - -
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BEZZE_ZFNA/\HiEBTE)
Jiang Yan-bo BEK - -
(in office from 8 September 2020) (BZZZFNAN\BRER)
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IFsRB/AM A
REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS EEHFMBE
The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for executive AEEHHITEZHFHEENTIERELELAQT
Directors is to enable the Company to retain and motivate FAFEBEHITESHHEEL@EAARBHBI BN
executive Directors by linking their compensation with their & EEZERAEBMNKLEENRGE  RABTRAL
individual performance as measured against the corporate SETIHIEMH - LI EB MEERTESE - SETTE
objectives and the Group’s operating results and taking into SREREEEFHNE  FHEZETRNEEIH
account of comparable market conditions. For the remuneration {ARIHITEERSRAEEENFIESIRHER (F
of the executive Directors and senior management, the MMEEATRNEEB.1.2(c)(ii)EFTMER) I 15
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board MHMESZSEM LKA E  RERITESHFIE
on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors AAHREBAKLBREASHE - HITEENFHAS
and senior management (adopting the model described in code FTEIHHBBEEAFT S  BISIEA - IFRTEEN
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code) which would then be FHMEEZEBHEEEWRE -EETHNEITHIEAZEER
reviewed and subject to approval by the Board. The remuneration EREFEANES  AATEIELAERHE -
package of the executive Directors would also be subject to
approval by shareholders at general meetings. The principal
elements of the remuneration package of executive Directors
include basic salary and discretionary bonus. The remuneration
of non-executive directors includes mainly the Director’s fee. The
Company reimburses reasonable expenses incurred by Directors
in the course of their carrying out of duties as Directors.
Directors do not participate in decisions on their own EETZRHEETHASHFH -
remuneration.
The emoluments paid to each Director for the year ended 31 HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HBULFE IHFH
December 2020 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements. EENMEHN I BREMETO -
Remuneration of Senior Management During the Year FARREEAESTH
Number of senior
management
Remuneration by bands RERENHE SREEREAH
RMBO to RMB5 million AREZTTE ARBS008E T 7
RMB5 million to RMB11 million ARBE008TEARK1,1008 7T 5
cninf%
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Group has established the Nomination Committee. As at
31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee comprises an
executive Director, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, a non-executive director,
Mr. Lv Xiang-yang, and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Cai Hong-ping, Mr. Zhang Min and Mr. Jiang
Yan-bo, with Mr. Jiang Yan-bo as the chairman. The Nomination
Committee has been delegated with the powers and authorities
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships and senior management, appointment
and reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors and assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors and determine the policy for the nomination of
Directors.

In light of the latest amendments made to the Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
the Board has further adopted the revised terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee. For more details on such terms of
reference, please refer to the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

During the Year, no actual meeting was held by the Nomination
Committee, but members meet and communicate as and when
required, through which the Committee has, among other things,
considered the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board and reviewed the standards and procedures for the
selection of directors and senior management.
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The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) which includes the selection
criteria and nomination procedures of new appointments and re-
appointments of directors. The selection criteria for assessing
candidates include, in particular, his/her educational background
and professional qualifications, experiences in the industry,
personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions to the
diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy.
In the case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination
Committee would take into account factors such as contribution
from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate is appointed
for the position of independent non-executive director, the
Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence
with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules. In
appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first identify potential candidates. After the Nomination
Committee evaluated the candidates based on the selection
criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or more
qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board
will determine and agree on a preferred candidate. The Company
and/or the Chairman of the Board will then negotiate the terms of
appointment with the preferred candidate. Finally, the Chairman of
the Board, in consultation with the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and the chairman of the Nomination Committee, will
then finalise a letter of appointment for the Board’s approval.
The Nomination Committee shall ensure the transparency and
fairness of the selection procedure and continue to adopt diverse
selection criteria during the appointment procedure, taking into
consideration a range of elements such as age, educational
background, professional experience, industrial skills and
professional knowledge. Since its establishment, the Nomination
Committee has assumed the role of reviewing such diverse
selection policy at the nomination level, maintaining a diversified
spectrum of varying perspectives, educational background and
professional knowledge in the Board.

2\
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The Board’s Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy, which sets out
the approach to the diversity of Board members. The Company
recognises the importance of diversity to corporate governance
and an effective Board. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set
out the approach to achieve Board diversity, so as to ensure that
the Board members possess appropriate skills, experience and
diverse views necessary for the business of the Company. In
determining the Board composition,
Committee consider a range of diversity elements, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments
of the Board will be made based on merit and objective criteria
while taking into full account the interest of the Board’s diversity.

the Board and Nomination

The selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
elements and measurable objectives which will be reviewed
regularly. Such measurable objectives shall include, but be not
limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or terms of service.
The final decision will be made according to the strengths of
the candidate and his/her contribution that would bring to the
Board. Having considered the business needs of the Company,
the Nomination Committee considers that the current Board is
sufficiently diversified in terms of its skills, experience, knowledge
and independence.

The Nomination Committee has performed the above duties during
the Year.

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Group established the Strategy Committee on 20 March 2008.
As at 31 December 2020, the Strategy Committee comprises
Mr. Wang Chuan-fu,
directors, namely Mr. Lv Xiang-yang and Mr. Xia Zuo-quan, and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cai Hong-
ping and Mr. Zhang Min, with Mr. Wang Chuan-fu as the chairman.
The main duty of the Strategy Committee is to consider and make
recommendations on the Company’'s long-term development
strategy and major investment decisions.

an executive Director, two non-executive
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Qian, Company Secretary of the Company, is a full-time
staff of the Group, and is familiar with the daily affairs of the
Company. During the financial year, the Company Secretary had
complied with the relevant professional training requirements
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details
of the Company Secretary are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total remuneration
paid to the international auditor, Ernst & Young and the domestic
auditor, Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP), was RMB6,350,000 for
audit services and non-audit services provided for the Company
and its subsidiaries. The audit fee was approved by the Board.
During the reporting period, the total remuneration in respect of
the non-audit services provided was RMB900,000.

SRERRE

NEIWmE
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2020 2019

Item EE —E_EF —EB—NE
Review of interim results ERP IS RMB900,000 RMB1,050,000
AER#900,0005t A X1 050,0007C

Other non-audit services H b IEEET RS - RMB808,000

AR#808,0007T

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” in this annual
report.

The Board has proposed to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the
international auditor of the Company for 2021 and Ernst &
Young Hua Ming (LLP) as the domestic auditor of the Company
for 2021, which is subject to approval by shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. There was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection and
reappointment of the internal and external auditors during the year
under review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board confirms its responsibility for risk management and
internal control systems, and for reviewing their effectiveness
through the Audit Committee at least annually. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in performing its responsibilities
for supervision and corporate governance, covering financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal control, as
well as internal audit functions of the Company.

Various measures have been designed for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records and for the reliability of financial information
used within the business or for publication. The Company’s
systems of risk management and internal control are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud. The
Board considers that the Company is fully compliant with the
provisions of risk management and internal control as set forth in
the Corporate Governance Code.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Company’s risk management system is composed of a
well-established organizational structure as well as all-rounded
policies and procedures. The responsibilities of each business
and functional department are clearly defined to ensure effective
balance. The Company’s risk management and internal control
structure comprises of:

Board of Directors

o Evaluating and determining the nature and magnitude of
the risks to be assumed by the Company, to achieve its
business and strategic goals;

o Ensuring that the Company has established and maintained
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems;

° Supervising the designing, implementation and inspection
of the risk management and internal control systems by the
management team.
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Audit Committee

° Assisting the Board in performing its duties of risk
management and internal control systems;

o Supervising the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis, to provide opinions
and suggestions with regard to the improvement of the risk
management and internal control systems;

° Reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems at least once a
year;

° Ensuring that the Company has sufficient resources, staff

qualifications and experiences in accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

Management Team

. Designing, implementing and inspecting the risk
management and internal control systems;

° Identifying, evaluating and managing risks that may exert
potential impacts on major operational procedures;

° Responding to and following up in a timely manner with
regard to the investigation results of risk management
and internal control issues raised by the Internal Audit
Department;

. Providing opinions to the Board and the Audit Committee
on the acknowledgment of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems.

Internal Audit Department
° Reviewing the due effectiveness of the Company’s risk

management and internal control systems;

. Reporting the audit results and making suggestions to
the Audit Committee, to improve major drawbacks of the
systems or identify the deficiency of the control.
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IDENTIFICATION, EVALUATION AND MANAGEMENT
OF MAJOR RISKS

The management team and relevant staff identify risks that may
exert potential impacts on the Company and its operation, and
evaluate and monitor risks in the environment and process.
Through comparison of the risk appraisal results and risk
prioritization, risk management strategies and internal control
procedures are determined to prevent, avoid or reduce risks.

Major risks and related control measures are reviewed and
upgraded on an ongoing basis to ensure proper internal control
procedures in place. Based on the testing results, persons
in charge confirm with the senior management that internal
control measures have played their roles as expected, their
weakness identified in the control have been corrected, and
risk management policies and internal control procedures have
been revised, in the event of any major changes. The Board
and the Audit Committee supervise the control activities of the
management team to ensure the effectiveness of the control
measures.

Annual Review

In 2020, the Board reviewed the soundness and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
covering financial, operational and compliance control, with a
self-evaluation report issued on the internal control. In addition,
the Company retained an auditor to audit the effectiveness of the
internal control related to the Company’s financial reports, and to
provide independent and objective assessments and suggestions
in the form of auditor's report.
Company’s risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

The Board considers that the

Internal Audit

The Group has an Internal Audit Department which, equipped
with an independent internal audit system, plays an important role
in the Group’s risk management and internal control framework.
The Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee. The annual and quarterly work plans of the Internal
Audit Department are reviewed by the Audit Committee and
reported to the Audit Committee regularly. Major audit findings
will be reported on a timely basis. Based on its consideration, the
Audit Committee will provide advice for the Board and the senior
management, with subsequent measures taken to review the
implementation of the rectification and improvement plans.
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Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group has put in place a set of policy for the disclosure of
inside information which sets out the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
in a timely manner and in compliance with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
Unless the inside information falls within any of the safe harbors
as permitted under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the
Group is required to disseminate such information through the
electronic publication system operated by the Stock Exchange to
the public in a timely manner. All Directors, officers and relevant
employees are required to take reasonable precautions for
preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained, the Group will immediately disclose the information to
the public as soon as reasonably practicable. The policy and its
effectiveness are subject to review on a regular basis.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by its Directors.
Having made specific inquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirmed all Directors have complied with their obligations under
the Model Code regarding their securities transactions during the
Year.

Specified employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Group are also subject to
compliance with the Model Code. No incident of non-compliance
was noted by the Company in 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for considering any matters specified in such
requisition.
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Further, pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders individually or jointly holding no less than 3% of
the Company’s shares may submit an extempore proposal to the
convener of a general meeting in writing ten days prior to the date
of the meeting. The convener shall dispatch a supplementary
notice of general meeting and announce the contents of such
extempore proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Furthermore, a shareholder may propose a person other than a
retiring Director for election as a Director at a general meeting.
For such purpose, the shareholder must send to the Board a
notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his or her
willingness to be so elected, no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the relevant general meeting and not
later than 7 days prior to the date appointed for the relevant
general meeting.

Shareholders may send their requisitions and inquiries requiring
the Board’s attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1712, 17th Floor,
Tower 2 Grand Central Plaza, No. 138 Shatin Rural Committee
Road, New Territories, Hong Kong. Other general inquiries can be
directed to the Company through our Investor and Media Relations
Consultant, whose contact information is disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective communication with
investors is essential for enhancing investors’ knowledge and
understanding of the Company. To achieve this, the Company
pursues a proactive policy of promoting investor relations and
communications. The main purpose of the Company’s investor
relations policy, therefore, is to enable investors to have access,
on a fair and timely basis, to information that is reasonably
required for making the best investment decisions.
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During the year, in order to fulfill legal requirements related to
“Decision to Amend Guidelines on Articles of Association of
Listed Companies” (CSRC Announcement (2019) No. 10), issued
by China Securities Regulatory Commission on 17 April 2019,
“State Council’s Official Reply Regarding Adjustment of Rules on
Notice Period of General Meetings Convened by Overseas Listed
Companies” (State Letter (2019) No. 97), issued by State Council
on 22 October 2019, Securities Law of the People’s Republic of
China as amended in 2019, current Listing Rules of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and actual needs of the Company, the Board
and Shareholders passed the resolutions on amendments to
the Articles of Association at a Board meeting held on 21 April
2020, and an annual general meeting held on 23 June 2020
respectively, resolved to amend provisions related to re-purchase
of shares, notice period of shareholders’ general meetings and
transactions that are required to be considered and approved
by the Board; the following amendments were made thereby to
Article 1, Article 29, Article 30, Article 32, Article 43, Article 64,
Article 68, Article 70, Article 108 and Article 116 of the Articles
of Association. For amendment information, please refer to the
Company'’s circular dated on 29 April 2020. Except the aforesaid
amendments, there is not been any other significant change in
the Articles of Association of the Company. The latest version of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

In addition, in accordance with the Securities Law of the People’s
Republic of China as amended in 2019, State Council’s Official
Reply Regarding Adjustment of Rules on Notice Period of General
Meetings Convened by Overseas Listed Companies (State Letter
(2019) No. 97), Guidelines on Articles of Association of Listed
Companies as amended in 2019, and current valid Listing Rules
of Shenzhen Stock Exchange and actual needs of the Company,
the Company mainly amended provisions related to the notice
period of shareholders’ general meetings as stipulated in the
Rules of Procedure of Shareholders’ General Meetings. For details
of amendments, please refer to the Company’s circulars dated on
29 April 2020.
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The directors of the Company (“Board”) submit their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
BYD Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together with the Company hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Group is principally engaged in automobile business which
includes traditional fuel-engined vehicles and new energy
vehicles, handset components and assembly services, as well
as rechargeable battery and photovoltaic business while taking
advantage of its technological superiority to actively develop
urban rail transportation and other business segment. The
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities for the year ended
31 December 2020. Further discussion and analysis of principal
activities are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 13 to 27 of the annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2020 by business and geographical segments is set
out in note 4 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated financial statements and their notes
on page 82 to 279 of this annual report.

Dividend Distribution Policy

(0] The Company’s profit distribution policy shall focus on
providing investors with reasonable investment returns
as well as maintaining the sustainable development of
the Company. The Company’s profit distribution shall not
exceed the range of the accumulated distributable profits
or damage the Company’s ability to continue operations.
A sustained and steady profit distribution policy shall be
implemented.

(11 The Company may distribute dividends in cash, in
shares or in a combination of both cash and shares or as
otherwise permitted by the laws and regulations. When the
conditions for cash dividend are satisfied, cash dividend
shall be the priority method of profit distribution.
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(V)

The Company’s profit distribution shall be prepared by
the Board of Directors in accordance with the Company’s
operating conditions and the relevant requirements of
China Securities Regulatory Commission and shall be
considered and approved at the shareholders’ general
meeting.

After the profit distribution plan is approved at the general
meeting of the Company, the Board of Directors of the
Company shall complete the distribution of dividends within
two months after convening the shareholders’ general
meeting.

The profit distributed by the Company in cash each year
shall not be less than 10% of the realized distributable
profit for the year, provided that the following cash
dividend conditions are satisfied and the capital needs for
the normal production, operation and development of the
Company are met. The cumulative profit for distribution in
cash for any three consecutive years shall not be less than
30% of the average annual distributable profit for such
three years:

(1) The distributable profit (i.e. the Company’s profit
after tax net of loss and contribution of reserve
funds) realized by the Company for the year or
half year is positive in value and the cash flow is
sufficient. The payment of cash dividends will not
affect the subsequent continuing operation of the
Company;

(2) The cumulative distributable profit of the Company
is positive in value;

(3) The audit firm issues an unqualified audit report on
the financial report of the Company for the year.

The Board of Directors of the Company may propose the
Company to make interim cash distribution according to the
Company’s earnings and capital requirement conditions,
provided that the cash dividend conditions are satisfied.

Depending on the profitability and business growth for the
year, the Company may distribute profits by way of shares
to match share capital expansion with business growth,
provided that the minimum cash dividend payout ratio and
an optimal share capital base and shareholding structure
are maintained.
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(VII)  When considering and conducting profit distribution,
the Board of Directors of the Company shall take into
account certain circumstances and factors as set out in the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

(VIII) The Company shall calculate, declare and pay dividends
and other amounts which are payable to holders of
domestic shares in Renminbi within the period as
prescribed by the Articles of Association. The Company
shall calculate and declare dividends and other payments
which are payable to holders of overseas-listed foreign
shares in Renminbi, and shall pay such amounts in the
foreign currency within the period as prescribed by the
Articles of Association. The applicable exchange rate
shall be the average closing rate for the relevant foreign
currency announced by the People’s Bank of China of the
five working days prior to the announcement of payment
of dividend and other amounts. The Company shall pay
foreign currencies to holders of overseas-listed foreign
shares in accordance with the relevant foreign exchange
control regulations of the State. Authorised by general
meetings, the Board may determine to distribute interim
dividends or bonuses.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of final
dividend of RMB0.148 per share (including tax) for the year ended
31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019: the
payment of RMBO0.06 per share (including tax)). The proposed
final dividend is subject to the consideration and approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the

“*AGM”) of the Company.

The Company will publish announcement, circular and notice
regarding the AGM in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Company will also
make separate announcement regarding the record date and
date of closure of register of members for the payment of the final
dividend to the holders of H shares. It is expected that the final
dividend will be distributed before 31 August 2021.

The final dividend will be denominated and declared in RMB.
The holders of A shares will be paid in RMB and the holders of H
shares will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate for
the dividend to be paid in Hong Kong dollars will be the mean of
the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars to RMB as announced
by the People’s Bank of China during the five business days prior
to the date of declaration of the dividend at the Extraordinary
General Meeting.
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In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China and its implementation regulations which
came into effect on 1 January 2008, the Company is required
to withhold and pay enterprise income tax at the rate of 10% on
behalf of the non-resident enterprise shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members for H shares when distributing
the cash dividends. Any H shares not registered under the name
of an individual shareholder, including HKSCC Nominees Limited,
other nominees, agents or trustees, or other organisations or
groups, will be deemed as shares held by non-resident enterprise
shareholders. Therefore, the enterprise income tax will be withheld
from dividends payable to such shareholders. If holders of H
shares intend to change its shareholder status, please enquire
about the relevant procedures with your agents or trustees. The
Company will strictly comply with the law or the requirements of
the relevant government authority and withhold and pay enterprise
income tax on behalf of the relevant shareholders based on the
register of members for H shares as at the record date of the
proposed final dividend.

In accordance with the Circular on Certain Issues Concerning
the Policies of Individual Income Tax (Cai Shui Zi [1994] No.
020) promulgated by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation on 13 May 1994, overseas individuals
are, temporarily, exempted from the PRC individual income tax for
dividend or bonuses received from foreign-invested enterprises.
In accordance with the Letter of the State Administration of
Taxation concerning Taxation Issues of Dividends Received by
Foreign Individuals Holding Shares of Companies Listed in China
(Guo Shui Han Fa [1994] No. 440) as promulgated by the State
Administration of Taxation on 26 July 1994, dividends (capital
bonuses) received by foreign individuals holding B shares or
overseas shares (including H shares) from Chinese enterprises
issuing such B shares or overseas shares are temporarily
exempted from individual income tax. Accordingly, in the payment
of final dividends, the Company will not withhold and pay the
individual income tax on behalf of individual shareholders
when the Company distributes the final dividend to individual
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
H shares of the Company.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisor
regarding the ownership and disposal of H shares of the Company
in the PRC and in Hong Kong and other tax effects.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review set out on pages 16 to 20 of the annual
report shall form an integral part of this Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group

Please refer to note 49 to the financial statements for details
of the main financial risks faced by the Group and the Group’s
management objectives and policies regarding such risks. In
addition to such financial risks, the Directors are of the view that
any material change in relevant government policies (such as the
Chinese Government’s policies on economic development and
environmental protection) is also one of the principal risks and
uncertainties that may affect the Group’s business.

Environmental policies

The Group has been a positive respondent for environmental
protection. While helping reduce energy consumption through
green products, the Group also focuses on reducing the direct
impacts of its operation on the environment. By introducing
an energy management system, promoting the replacement of
traditional energy with renewable energy and saving energy
through technical and management means, BYD continues
to reduce its own energy consumption and carbon dioxide
emissions.

Regulatory compliance

BYD requires stringent compliance with laws, social norms,
professional ethics and internal regulations in its worldwide
operations. The Group has established the Law and Regulation
Management Committee which monitors, supervises and
inspects, regularly and from time to time, the management and
implementation of laws and regulations in various departments,
and evaluates their implementation and compliance in such areas.
During the year of 2020, as far as the Company is aware, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.
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Relationship with employees HESNBE
Since employees are the foundation for development, the Group HRNEEAZREMERL XEBRANERERS
adheres to the “people-oriented” principle in its human resources EEH[UAARINRE] - AlEFENMERS L
management and practices equal employment opportunities 2 |F— IR E IR - AEETF BT HIES FHF K
and prohibits any career discrimination. The Group reviews its - BREBEFEE TFEXRIRTZ  BESERLAN
employee compensation policies on a regular basis and bonuses %4 - AEBNTNERE  XBERERESHESE
and commission may be awarded to employees based on their HEBIEES -
annual performance evaluation. Efforts have also been made to
help employees in the aspects of housing, transportation and
children’s education, etc.
Relationship with customers and suppliers HEFRHERDNRER
The Group strives to build and maintain long term and strong ZAEBESNHERTFEU A RHEERE - tho
relationships with customers. BYD has established a customer #BEEV—EAEEMEEETERE  UERLHE
satisfaction management system with a view to understanding and EF®EK  WiIRSEREE - AMEEmAHI®@ - &
fulfilling customers’ demands and enhancing their satisfaction. SEBEMBENER @ BAARERRBEMNEFENE
In terms of suppliers, the Group’'s objective is to keep mutually % - R @ AEES FHTXEREENRR (2
beneficial and win-win partnerships with all suppliers. At the IEHEEFNLEESE) o
same time, the Group regularly evaluates the performance of our
suppliers including suppliers’ social responsibility.
RESERVES (EA]
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the ZAEBRARFBERFEENEEELBFBED BER
Company during the Year are set out in the Consolidated AOHEREENR LI KIRERM LS -
Statement of Changes in Equity and note 41 to the financial
statements, respectively.
DONATIONS B
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the ZAEEAEHZE-_ZT_ZTF+_A=+—HILFEE
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to RMB35,783,000 HzEREMBERA KX AREK35,783,0007T (=
(2019: RMB11,022,000). T—hF : ARM11,022,0007T) ©
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M - BERRE
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the AEBERARAGTNYE MELRRENEDFBEH
Group and the Company are set out in note 14 to the financial REFEHRERMFE14 -
statements.
SHARE CAPITAL R A
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set AR TR AN B HIE SN B iR KM 539 o
out in note 39 to the financial statements.
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries G/ » A &3k E (LA B A RS #H & 5 = o E [
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the AR GLf EHiES -
Company.
cninf%
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020,
calculated under the relevant legislation applicable in the PRC,
the Company’s place of incorporation, amounted to approximately
RMB462,339,000 (2019: RMB597,664,000).

BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2020, details of bank loans of the Group are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no similar restriction against
such rights under the laws of the PRC in respect of joint stock
limited companies, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 280 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report are:

— Executive Director:

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu

— Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lv Xiang-yang
Mr. Xia Zuo-quan
- Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cai Hong-ping (in office from 8 September 2020)
Mr. Zhang Min (in office from 8 September 2020)
Mr. Jiang Yan-bo (in office from 8 September 2020)

AR R

ZRAQ R M B R A EAEEAE A
NRARZEZZFF+ A=+ A RRHE
H B ANRB 462,339,000 (ZE—NF  ARH
597,664,0007C) °

Y

N

RITERK

R-ZZEZTF+-_A=+—HB  xEENRTEX
EAEESTp R il

BEEBRE

ARBWARERT WEBLBBIENEI > MH
B £ i £ B R B (E A AR RBE RO A 2 7R it A NI AR

BURRS - REARRARRBRRIZLHIHE
FTRX ©
IFUBBERE

AEEFRAEGREFENEEREEABREHR
KEFHRE280H ©

BE
BE-_Z_ZF+ A=+ A ILFERERNRE
BEAETMESOT

- HITEE:

TEREE

- FHTESE:
B AL
BlERELE

- BYFBITES:

RV EE (BT -TFAANREER)
RYELE (BT -ZFAANBRER)
BEREE(AZZTFAANRARER)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

All existing Directors had signed or renewed their service
contracts or letters of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing on 8 September 2020.

All existing supervisors had signed or renewed their service or
employment contracts with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 8 September 2020.

None of the above mentioned contracts and letters of appointment
are determinable within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party
and in which a Director or supervisor and an entity related to a
Director or supervisor of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The emolument payable to each executive Director is based on
(i) his duties and responsibilities; (ii) prevailing market conditions;
and (iii) performance and profitability of the Company.

The emolument payable to each non-executive director
(including independent non-executive director) is based on the
responsibilities and undertaking to the Board taking into account
his experience and market practice for such post.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9 to
the financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Brief biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior

management of the Company are set out on pages 30 to 42 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
each of the directors, supervisors and chief executives of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which he is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into
the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to be notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (for this purpose, the relevant
provisions of the SFO will be interpreted as if they applied to the
supervisors) were as follows:

A shares of RMB1.00 each

EE  EERRSITHRAENES

R-ZZ-_ZTFE+-_HA=+—H ARFEE EF
REBITBRABR&EBRARRREMREEE (&
RBERBZNFSTIEESF PRGN ([EFREE
Bl 1) EXVED) At - RO RESFTHEAR
BREFMBROIEXVEET R8N RAME AR A
REBBMERSMBER AR ([BEMRN]) kR
Kok a (BRRREE S RIS RE1A BSOS A
BREANER)  HIRIBESF R EGD 35214
ARBRIEEELM  HREFERIAESF L™
MAM EMARESETELFRXHHRETRIZAM
SARAREEBZMOER (RUEBNHE @ &5
RAEEPIMBBGEXERERERARES) T

BRAR®1.00TZAR

Approximate

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in total issued
A shares (%)

percentage of
shareholding
in total
issued share
capital (%)

Number of FREMAEERT FREWGLSRIT

A shares ARRAE M BAEEEW

Name #®E AREE BMOUBEDLE(%) BMYEDEE(%)

Wang Chuan-fu (Director) FER(ES) 513,623,850 (L) 28.33% 18.83%
(Note 1)
(Kiz#1)

Lv Xiang-yang (Director) =mkG (EE) 398,181,480 (L) 21.96% 14.60%
(Note 2)
(Hiat2)

Xia Zuo-quan (Director) BErz2(E%) 94,577,432(L) 5.22% 3.47%

(L) - Long Position (L)% &

cninf%
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Note:

1. The 513,623,850 A shares did not include the 3,727,700 A
shares held by Mr. Wang Chuan-fu in No.1 Assets Management
Plan through E Fund BYD;

2. Of the 398,181,480 A shares, 239,228,620 A shares were held

by Mr. Lv Xiang-yang in his personal capacity and 158,952,860
A shares were held by Youngy Investment Holding Group Co.,
Ltd. (RUEIREEREEER AR (“Youngy Investment”, formerly
known as Guangzhou Youngy Management & Investment
Group Company Limited). Youngy Investment was in turn
held by Mr. Lv Xiang-yang and his spouse as to 89.5% and
10.5% of equity interests, respectively. Mr. Lv Xiang-yang was
therefore deemed to be interested in the 158,952,860 A shares
under the SFO.

H shares of RMB1.00 each
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Kt

1. E#%513,623,850BAR Y - TRETMES
EBBSHEEEL DB REEE RS
BB 3,727, 700 B ARLRE

2. 7£:%398,181,480 LAY 2 7 + 239,228,620

BAKRBEEBEEANBEAZTOHEAER
158,952,860 KA AR IR EIEREEB R A
Al (RERE  AIBAENMERAEEEH
BRAF)RKA - EREAARRBEER
HEB DRI H89.5% X 10.5% 4
IR EE H R EAERA - 2R EERR AR
158,952,860 (X ARE B 1S ©

SRARM1.00T 2HRK

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in total
issued share
capital (%)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in total issued
H shares (%)

Number of HEREMAHE T IFREGDBT
H shares HER B IR A 48 K1Y
Name #®E HEBREE #BHAEI(%) BHNEDE(%)
Wang Chuan-fu (Director) TER(ES) 1,000,000 (L) 0.11% 0.04%
Xia Zuo-quan (Director) Brha(E%) 500,000 (L) 0.05% 0.02%
(Note)
(Kiat)
(L) — Long Position (L) -2 &
Note: Wizt :

Of the 500,000 H shares, 195,000 H shares were held by Mr. Xia Zuo-
quan as a beneficial owner and 305,000 H shares were held by Sign
Investments Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. Xia Zuo-quan.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors, supervisors or chief executives of the Company had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required
to be (a) recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

HA500,000HKEH » EEEEAUNERERAFTNDE
B195,000HR - MEBEAEZLEEE2EHBMSIgn
Investments Limited 84574 305,000 & Hf% ©

BEEEEN  R-Z-ZTF+-A=+—H  #if
ARREE  BEERRSTHRABERERRREEIE
BOXRE (Ex LEFRPEERPIEXVEL) &k - 8
P R EEEPEAEREIORAMA () TEN AR E
RIEE S R A GPIE326FENELMA : (o)
BEIMARESETESRXINBRETRAMNG AR F]
KB

ey
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS BEETHEEENRBRER

As at 31 December 2020, to the knowledge of the Directors of WR_-_Z_ZTH+-_F=+—H  iAR A EEF
the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors, %1 A FALT(TEEARARES  EERESTTH
supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had interests A 8)RARA ARG RABEBKRD F HARIEES L
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the  E{&HIEXVEIE2 &35 EBARAR 7 & EH B FT
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company {REHIEE B4 LB EEHNEI36EHARQ AT
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of EBEMZELMAERSAR

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or were required to be

entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO:

1. A shares of RMB1.00 each 1. FERAR1.00THAR

Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding

shareholding in total

in total issued issued share

A shares (%) capital (%)

Number of BREMEE T BFREMGDBT

A shares ARBEH A EEEW

Name 8 ABREE BHAEI%) BMIBEDL(%)

Youngy Investment (Note) B E (i) 158,952,860 (L) 8.77% 5.83%
(L) - Long Position (L) ~4F &

Note: Wizt -

Youngy Investment is owned by Mr. Lv Xiang-yang, a non-  GiEREBHARNATIERITESARGEEEELI 5%
executive Director of the Company, as to 89.5%. Mr. Lv is  z5 o Bt @ IREFELEEEN - 248 2R plEE
therefore deemed to be interested in the 158,952,860 A shares & &1#FHH 158,952,860 % A ER S ©

held by Youngy Investment under the SFO.

ey
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2. H shares of RMB1.00 each 2. BREEARE1.00 THHE
Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of  shareholding
shareholding in total
in total issued issued share
H shares (%) capital (%)
Number of HREWEBHT RKREMESERT
H shares HER B H A B
Name 28 HEZEE HMAOEI(%) OB (%)
Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (Note 1) Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (#7:#1) 225,000,000 (L) 24.59% 8.25%
Berkshire Hathaway Energy (Note 1) Berkshire Hathaway Energy (#7#7) 225,000,000 (L) 24.59% 8.25%
Li Lu (Note 2) Li Lu(#zt2) 75,387,200 (L) 8.24% 2.76%
LL Group, LLC (Note 2) LL Group, LLC (#/#2) 75,387,200 (L) 8.24% 2.76%
(L) — Long Position (S) — Short position (P) - Lending pool (L) - %f & (S)- K& (P)- i &7
Notes: BEr
1. Berkshire Hathaway Inc. was deemed to be interested 1. Berkshire Hathaway Inc. #
in 225,000,000 H shares (L) through its controlled RAESEABEZES AFBerkshire
corporation, Berkshire Hathaway Energy Company Hathaway Energy Company ([R%
(formerly known as MidAmerican Energy Holdings AMidAmerican Energy Holdings
Company) for the 225,000,000 H shares directly held Company) FTE# 5 #)225,000,000
by it. BEXHAZ - 225,000,000 B HA% (L) 2
HmEER o

2. LL Group, LLC was deemed to be interested in 2. LL Group, LLCH#18 A& BEEHIA A
75,387,200 H shares (L) through its controlled Himalaya Capital Investors, L.P. (/R
corporation, Himalaya Capital Investors, L.P. (formerly ZABLL Investment Partners, L.P.)%
known as LL Investment Partners, L.P.). Li Lu, being 75,387,200 HA% (L) 2 FhE A4S o Li
the controlling shareholder of Capital Investors, L.P. Lu&Capital Investors, L.P.(BITELL
(formerly known as LL Group, LLC), was also deemed Group, LLC) HERRARER - TRHgR AR

to be interested in 75,387,200 H shares. 75,387,200 HA% 7 A o
The total issued share capital of the Company as at 31 RZE_EF+_A=+—H &TRQAFD
December 2020 was RMB2,728,142,855, divided into BITIRALE A ANRED 728,142,855
1,813,142,855 A shares of RMB1.00 each and 915,000,000 $7%1,813,142, 855 R FREEA KK 1.00
H shares of RMB1.00 each, all fully paid up. JCHYARY 2915,000,000 % TR EIE A R

1.007TEVHAR - 2EHR/ERER -
cninf%
EMaER
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During the financial year, no director acquired benefits by
engaging in business that competes with that of the Company or
its subsidiaries.

In September 2009, Mr. Wang Chuan-fu, the controlling
shareholder of the Group, signed the Non-competition
Undertakings to confirm with the Company that he would abide
by the undertaking of not engaging in business that competes
with that of the Company. Directors, including independent
non-executive directors, have examined his compliance and
confirmed that the controlling shareholder has abided by all the
undertakings.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Currently, all PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes (the “Schemes”) launched by
local provincial and municipal governments in China, pursuant
to which the Group makes contributions to the Schemes in
accordance with the applicable percentage of the salary of
eligible staff. Local government authorities assume the obligation
in respect of all the pensions payable to retired staff.

Save for the above contributions, the Group does not have any
other major payment obligation in respect of pension benefits.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2020 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

EEEHN

HEZZ-_ZTHFF+_A=+—HBILFE  KRQAW
BN BEEXBAENEEXRBNERRTRIER
RIEFEAEAAL -

BEEK
RAMBFE  HEEFEEEAQ A K E MK
BRI EBHIREME

“ETENFNA  AEEERRREERELR
(TR FEG)  MARBEREETT2EES
%E’Jﬁv é%(a%ﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%%) EZE
B RE R IR MU R B B T T 5 B R AV PR G

$E
=
%“‘,

ﬁ‘ft rﬁf 3R

BT E

BRASENZPEMERF2E - LhhEEH
AT RAT R B 00 E R SOR KB AT 8 ([ %%
FED B AEEEARAEREEHFSMNER
LR mZ SR EME L MR o W77 BUT# BB R
KEEM2EERSHEERT -

MR Bt gERRoN - RE BN M E A E EARK BT
IRELE ©
FEEFREER

AEENTIEHERLREPERE_T_TF+=
A=T—HULFENRBREIEERI O LAT

Purchases RIEEE
— the largest supplier — AR 10.03%
— the five largest suppliers combined — Il sAHRER AT 27.52%
Sales SHER
— the largest customer —HmAEP 12.65%
— the five largest customers combined — RS AEF AR 34.05%
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None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in any of the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions undertaken by the
Group during the Year is set out in notes 46(a), (b) and (c) to
the financial statements. Such related party transactions did not
constitute connected transactions of the Group under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

There was no connected transaction entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 which is required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules, and the Group has complied
with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant subsequent events of the Group are set out
in note 52 of the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this
report, the Directors confirm that the Company had sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each independent non-executive director has provided a written
statement confirming his/her independence to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company assessed that each
independent non-executive director continues to be independent.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s international auditor, and Ernst
& Young Hua Ming (LLP), the Company’s domestic auditor, will
retire. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to
appoint Ernst & Young as the international auditor of the Company
for 2021 and Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) as the domestic
auditor for 2021.
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52 °
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FUND RAISING AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company entered into a placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) with UBS AG Hong Kong Branch, Goldman Sachs
(Asia) L.L.C. and China International Capital Corporation Hong
Kong Securities Limited (together as Joint Global Coordinators
and Placing Agents) on 21 January 2021 (“Placing Agreement
Signing Date”) in relation to the placing of 133,000,000 new
H Shares of the Company. The Placing Price is HK$225.0 per
Placing Share: (a) a discount of approximately 8.2% to the
average closing price of HK$245.2 per H Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange for the last 10 consecutive trading days up to and
including 20 January 2021, being the last trading day before the
Placing Agreement Signing Date; (b) a discount of approximately
6.9% to the average closing price of HK$241.6 per H Share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last 5 consecutive
trading days up to and including 20 January 2021; and (c) a
discount of approximately 7.8% to the closing price of HK$244.0
per H Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 20 January
2021. The Placing Shares represent approximately 14.54% of
the existing number of H Shares in issue, being 915,000,000 H
Shares, and approximately 4.88% of the number of total issued
Shares as at the Placing Agreement Signing Date. The Placing
Shares represent approximately 12.69% of the number of issued
H Shares and approximately 4.65% of the number of total issued
Shares, in each case, as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the Placing Shares. The aggregate nominal value of the Placing
Shares under the Placing is RMB133,000,000. The Placing Agents
placed the Placing Shares to not less than six Placees who are
independent professional, institutional and/or other investors (they
or their ultimate beneficial owners are third parties not connected
with the Company, connected persons of the Company and
any of the Directors, supervisors, chief executive or substantial
shareholder(s) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or their
respective associates). The Placing was completed on 28 January
2021. Details of the Placing were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated on 21 January 2021 and 28 January 2021.

EEESRFIEREAR

ARAFIEUBS AG Hong Kong Branch * &% (g8
M BRECABDRTEEARCEBESEFHERA
B(EABFEE2EMAAREERE) R =—
F—AZT—B(EREHEEER )L TEERH
#([EESsWw=]) - AEEE A2 75133,000,000
FTHER - BREERMBELEE225.087T : (a)&
MRS —E - —F— A=+ B (AEEH#
ZEHNHREZ AR SA > 2%B)REEETE
REBZFHWTETRHRL 245 2B T EL
8.2% : (b)) —_T—_—F—A=+HA
(F%B)BEREERERS B 2 PR ESRKRH
f%#1241.678 TTIEL6.9% : R(c) L - T - —F—
A=+ BHRERZ TR Wi B S RHR244.08 7T
PraEI7.8% - BERNDIEZEREEHEHRSACE
77915,000,000 B HAE &I 4914.54% » KA & %
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ErRERDNLATEESARE133,000,0007T °
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The aggregate gross proceeds from the Placing are approximately
HK$29,925 million and the aggregate net proceeds (after
deduction of the commissions and estimated expenses) from the
Placing are approximately HK$29,801 million; the net price (after
deduction of the commissions and estimated expenses) raised
per H Share is approximately HK$224.1. The net proceeds from
the Placing are intended to be used by the Group to supplement
its working capital, repay interest-bearing debt, invest in research
and development and as general corporate purpose.

The Placing offers the Company a good opportunity to optimise its
capital structure and financial structure for its business. Further,
the Company will be able to enrich its shareholder base by
attracting a number of high calibre investors to participate in the
Placing. The Company expects that the unutilised proceeds will
be used according to the intended use of proceeds as previously
announced.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company did not have

any other fund raising activity during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Chuan-fu
Chairman

Shenzhen, PRC, 29 March 2021
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In 2020, in accordance with the principle of being accountable
to all shareholders, the Supervisory Committee of the Company
fully complied with the duties to supervise and ensure that the
resolutions as passed in general meetings were consistently
implemented, the legal interest of shareholders was protected
and the duties conferred under the Articles of Association and
in the general meetings were completed in accordance with
the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the relevant
provisions, facilitating a disciplined operation and sustainable
development of the Company.

1. MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD AND
RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN SUCH MEETINGS

On 21 April 2020, the Supervisory Committee convened
its meeting at the office of the Company, where the annual
report of the Company for 2019 was considered and
approved accordingly.

On 28 April 2020, the Supervisory Committee convened
its meeting at the office of the Company, where the first
quarterly report of the Company for 2020 was considered
and approved accordingly.

On 21 August 2020, the Supervisory Committee convened
its meeting at the office of the Company, where the election
of the new Supervisory Committee of the Company for 2020
was considered and approved accordingly.

On 28 August 2020, the Supervisory Committee convened
its meeting at the office of the Company, where the the
interim report of the Company for 2020 was considered
and approved accordingly.

On 8 September 2020, the Supervisory Committee
convened its meeting at the office of the Company,
where the election of the chairman of the 7th Supervisory
Committee of the Company for 2020 was considered and
approved accordingly.

On 29 October 2020, the Supervisory Committee convened
its meeting at the office of the Company, where the third
quarterly report of the Company for 2020 was considered
and approved accordingly.
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2. PROGRESS OF THE WORK OF THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE DURING THE
REPORTING PERIOD

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee
of the Company performed its supervisory functions in
a fiduciary manner. The Supervisory Committee duly
supervised and examined the Company’s financial
situation, the Board of Directors’ execution of the
resolutions passed in general meetings, operational
decisions of the management, the operations of the
Company in compliance with the laws, the acts of the
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Company, and the related party transactions entered into
with its controlling shareholder. The Supervisory Committee
considered that:

(1) The operating activities of the Company and its
controlling subsidiaries in 2020 did not violate the
Company Law, the Articles of Association, financial
accounting procedures and the laws and regulations
of the PRC.

(2) During the discharge of their duties in 2020, the
Directors, supervisors and senior management of
the Company fulfilled their fiduciary duties by acting
lawfully, regularized management, explored for
innovation, with discipline to protect the interests of
all the shareholders of the Company. None of the
parties named above was found in breach of the
Company Law, the Articles of Association or the
laws and regulations of the PRC.

(3) The auditor presented an unqualified auditor’s
report. The report indicates that the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial
status and operating results of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is confident in the prospect of the
Company and will proceed to carry out effective supervision on
the operation of the Company to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole.

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
Dong Jun-qing

29 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB HRES

Emst & Young R BB Tel B3 +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower EBPIBREIE 1% Fax {EE: +852 2868 4432
f i 1 Tim Mei Avenue PiERE2218 www.ey.com
7 Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of BYD Company Limited BEEROERATRR

(Registered in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
BYD Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 280, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

REELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEELRRNMEY

Impairment assessment of non-financial non-current
assets

The Group recorded property, plant and equipment
of RMB58,201,882,000 and other intangible assets
of RMB10,107,776,000, which included capitalised
development costs of RMB9,688,588,000 as at 31
December 2020 in the consolidated financial statements.
The management assessed whether there were any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial non-current
assets at 31 December 2020. Non-current assets with
impairment indicators and development costs were
tested for impairment. The management calculated the
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units (CGUs),
which is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal
and the value in use in the impairment test. The calculation
of the recoverable amounts involved significant judgements
and assumptions, such as revenue from future sales, gross
profit margin, operational costs, terminal growth rates,
discount rates, etc.

ﬁi “EFE+-A=+—H  BEERAHIEBKHRERBER
%% W= MEEEEARKES8,201,882,0007T K H b #
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BRFTRESE -

FERMERTEERE TG

We performed the following audit procedures, among
others, in relation to the impairment assessment of non-
financial non-current assets:

BPEESRIPRBEENREF AT (PR3 ATHE
Zi2F

° Obtained an understanding of key internal
controls of impairment assessment and its design
and operating effectiveness;

. TRERE R e BB A B R R R ETMETT A
M
° Discussed with management on the impairment

indicators of non-financial non-current assets and
checked the reasonableness of identification of
CGUs and impairment test model;

. BEEENRIFERIFABEENRETRLBRER
@Eiﬁm%% BER SRS

o Evaluated the appropriateness of management’s
assumptions used in the impairment test
(including revenue growth, profit margin, forecast
periods, etc);
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Key audit matter

REELEE

BYZHMERES

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEELRRNMEY

As the assessment process is relatively complicated and
involves significant estimates, which may be affected
by unexpected future market and economic conditions,
impairment assessment of non-financial non-current assets
is considered as a key audit matter during the year.

BARFHEABRLEEML P REARMGE - REIFEHR
RIS A RGBEARR O E - #OERBEERNBENEK
BRAFNERERZER -

Details of the impairment assessment are disclosed in
notes 2.4, 3, 14 to 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BEMGEOFERERGHUBREME24 -3 14216
18 ¢

° Involved internal valuation experts to assist in
evaluating the appropriateness of assumptions
and parameters, including discount rates,
terminal growth rates, etc.;

. BB AABEERR  FHBRRARZENGRE
tE o HPEaE  TRX . ARERRRE:

° Evaluated the assumptions and parameters
by retrospectively reviewing the accuracy of
management’s forecasts made historically,
reviewing the forecasted future economic trend
and corroborating the assumptions with current
market trend;

o EBEWEEIBME T T BN LR LI K K
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° Reviewed the sufficiency and completeness of
disclosures included in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matter

REELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEELRRNMEY

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables, contract assets and long-term
receivables

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables amounted
to RMB39,307,896,000, long-term receivables amounted
to RMB1,804,913,000 and contract assets amounted to
RMB5,346,105,000, which accounted for a significant
portion of the consolidated financial statements.

M-ZE-_ZFE+-A=+—H EUWBSFERXRARK
39,307,896,0007T * KHIEUWBR XA R ¥ 1,804,913,0007T &%
ARIBEARKS346,105,00070 * AU BKREMEBE
KEBS -

Management uses a provision matrix to calculate the
expected credit losses for trade receivables, long-term
receivables and contract assets. The application of the
provision matrix requires to consider all reasonable and
reliable information, including customers’ credit risks,
aging of receivables, existence of disputes and historic
payments,
conditions. The groupings of various customer segments
and the estimation of expected credit loss rate involve
significant judgements and estimates.

as well as forecasts of future economic

ERERAREREEAERKEZRN REBKEIEER
BENRHNGEEER ERRRBEETESEMASEAEAK
BRER  BREEFEERR  BRUERER REFEDK
Aan - MENKES - A RHRREERROER - SEEF
DB D AR HTEREEBRERNGES REXHE R

Details of the provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables, contract assets and long-term receivables are
disclosed in notes 2.4, 3, 24, 27 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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We performed the following procedures, among others,

in relat

BAHBEMEEBERRERT

ion to the provision for expected credit losses:

(R85 AT

Obtained an understanding of key internal
controls of the provision for expected
credit losses and its design and operating
effectiveness;
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Discussed with management on the identification
of customer segments and estimates on expected
credit losses, reviewed their accuracy based
on historical incurred losses, and evaluated
the reasonableness of management’s expected
credit loss model considering current economic
conditions;
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For trade receivables with individually assessed
credit risk exposure, discussed with management
on the reasonableness of identification and
analysed the recoverability of such receivables;
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Key audit matter

REELEE

BYRZREMBRES

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEEEELRRNMEY

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

For trade receivables with credit risk exposure
assessed based on provision matrix, evaluated
the reasonableness of estimates on the expected
credit loss model based on type of customers,
historical incurred losses and expected credit
loss rates of comparable companies; and
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Recalculated and checked management’s
provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables, contract assets and long-term
receivables to ensure mathematical accuracy.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is M.L. Chau.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
29 March 2021
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HEZT-_TFT_A=t—HLLFE

2020 2019
—BRHE —E-NF
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
bt et ARBT T AERBTTT
REVENUE A 5 153,469,184 121,778,117
Cost of sales SHE AR (126,225,593) (103,702,124)
Gross profit EF 27,243,591 18,075,993
Other income and gains N NS 5 1,700,078 1,974,950
Government grants and subsidies R 48 B B vl B 7 1,688,142 1,707,657
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R SRR (5,055,613)  (4,345,897)
Research and development costs it 75 B B A AR (7,464,861)  (5,629,372)
Administrative expenses TERFAX (4,395,630) (4,232,316)
Impairment losses on financial and cREEREEN (1,166,268) (477,031)
contract assets REE R
Loss on disposal of financial assets measured & & RB K AT EHY (299,523) (519,134)
at amortised cost SRMEENEBE
Other expenses HAbpx (2,056,691) (213,536)
Finance costs BA A 8 (3,123,801)  (3,487,407)
Share of profits and losses of: DMEE N R E1E
Joint ventures AERA (198,955) (435,311)
Associates AN 12,118 12,535
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A& T 6 6,882,587 2,431,131
Income tax expense FriS Bl 11 (868,624) (312,274)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 6,013,963 2,118,857
Attributable to: FEfL -
Owners of the parent [SYNEIE PPN 13 4,234,267 1,614,450
Non-controlling interests IR R 1,779,696 504,407
6,013,963 2,118,857
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO B RAFKNZER 13
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EREEA
THE PARENT EEsRER
Basic and diluted BERREE
— For profit for the year — FERH RMB RMB

AR¥1.47t AR¥0.507T
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BOtERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-T-TE+-A=+-ALFE

2020 2019
—E-ZHF Z—NF
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Htet AR¥T T ARBETTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEA 6,013,963 2,118,857
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hitir el
Other comprehensive loss that Hig BAEmIae &= 88
may be reclassified to profit or loss in ZERMNEMSE
subsequent periods: &5t -
Trade receivable financing: JEMWFIERLE - 25
Changes in fair value NAEEEE (12,680) (5,234)
Impairment losses VERIENE= 329 (1,907)
(12,351) (7,141)
Exchange differences: ME 258
Exchange differences on translation of HMEIRINE TS EE B (57,989) 15,547
foreign operations MEHZRE
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that Hiz B e EFH DR (70,340) 8,406
may be reclassified to profit or loss ZESNEMES
in subsequent periods (E18),/ W58
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that HEgBRTeETm oA
will not be reclassified to profit or loss ZERMAEMEE
in subsequent periods: (E18),/ W -
Equity investments at fair value through AR EBEREWET A 21
other comprehensive income: H At m/\ﬂﬁz SEVERIRE ¢
Changes in fair value NABEEZEE (502,223) 301,335
Income tax effect PRSI & 63,644 (63,644)
(438,579) 237,691
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that HizHRTgEN»EE (438,579) 237,691
will not be reclassified to profit or loss BamEMERE
in subsequent periods (F518) W F5E
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)INCOME & EHib&a (51E),/ Wi - (508,919) 246,097
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX NBRBLIE
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR EEGAWNFEE 5,505,044 2,364,954
THE YEAR
Attributable to: H&E\fﬁ :
Owners of the parent NEEA A 3,724,840 1,858,537
Non-controlling interests 3ET % e 2 1,780,184 506,417
5,505,044 2,364,954
cnlnf
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B OB AR R

31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
o3 AR®T T AR®ET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BB R 14 58,201,882 55,296,009
Investment properties HEME 15 94,217 96,902
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 16(a) 7,527,852 7,241,013
Goodwill kS 17 65,914 65,914
Other intangible assets HEthEpEE 18 10,107,776 11,887,635
Prepayments, other receivables and FEMFUE - HiaEUER R 26 2,670,118 5,303,154
other assets MEMEE
Long-term receivables REFEUBREFR 28 1,804,913 1,240,340
Investments in joint ventures REERENEE 19 4,442,807 3,105,145
Investments in associates B/\Hﬁfé.-fﬂjﬁﬂxﬁ 20 1,022,781 955,030
Equity investments at fair value through @ﬁ{“ﬁﬁr;lﬁ)\ 21 1,420,080 1,922,304
other comprehensive income Hinfr e s mi &
Other non-current financial assets HEiIERESSREE 284,896 46,608
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 38 1,768,975 1,514,934
Total non-current assets ERBEEME 89,412,211 88,674,988
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories ra 23 31,396,358 25,571,564
Contract assets EREE 27 5,346,105 6,986,619
Trade receivables EUE ZEEFK 24 39,307,896 40,134,545
Trade receivable financing U GRTE R E 25 8,862,340 7,009,379
Prepayments, other receivables and FEMFOE - HiaEUER R 26 5,911,685 6,078,455
other assets KEMEE
Due from joint ventures and associates FEUE & AR R E R RIFRIA 45(c) 3,434,820 5,135,699
Completed property held for sale BENEE %R TS 22 2,900,852 3,365,916
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA 32 24 34,345
Pledged deposits [z EiVEEN 29 429,041 837,921
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITER 29 277,491 137,865
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeEEY 29 13,738,498 11,674,297
Total current assets MENEERE 111,605,110 106,966,605
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables JENE SRR R ER 30 49,791,630 35,340,662
Other payables and accruals Eofth T 5B K FE R B A 31 15,536,057 10,648,738
Lease liabilities HEsE 16(c) 168,507 219,040
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMI A 32 57,541 34,307
Advances from customers TR R PR 7,500 2,000
Contract liabilities aREE 33 8,185,888 4,502,139
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFEIRITREMER 35 27,644,643 54,061,858
Due to joint ventures and associates JEfT & &R R R Bk & A Bl FRIE 45(c) 2,398,177 1,025,545
Due to other related parties JRE 11 EL A B g 07 BB 45(c) 137,566 110,857
Tax payable FETBEIE 564,498 259,607
Provision B 36 1,938,689 1,824,194
Total current liabilities BB EETE 106,430,696 108,028,947
NET CURRENT ASSETS(LIABILITIES) REBEE (BE) B8 5,174,414 (1,062,342)
cnlnf
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B OB AR R

31 December 2020

—E-TF+-_HA=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEHF —FE-NF

Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

o3 AR®T T AREFIT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEEZAERRBER 94,586,625 87,612,646
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HBERITT R HAME R 35 23,625,954 21,916,487
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(c) 843,286 548,680
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIAEE 38 393,150 102,864
Deferred income PEIE WA 34 2,269,176 2,232,101
Other liabilities HEMEE 37 3,001,147 211,094
Total non-current liabilities BB EERE 30,132,713 25,011,226
Net assets BEFE 64,453,912 62,601,420
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BATHE AEGRER
Share capital f& A 39 2,728,143 2,728,143
Reserves e 41 53,051,539 49,639,554
Perpetual loans KERE 42 1,094,592 4,394,592

56,874,274 56,762,289
Non-controlling interests FEIE I HE 2 7,579,638 5,839,131
Total equity TR 4ATE 64,453,912 62,601,420
Wang Chuan-fu Lv Xiang-yang
TER = [k
cninf%
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BORERER

31 December 2020

—TIFF+ZA=1+—H
2020 2019
“BoBE —T-NEF
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’000
Mzt AR®T R ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHEENRERE
Profit before tax BR 750 A 6,882,587 2,431,131
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs BUE AR 8 3,123,801 3,487,407
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures AMEEE AT REE R ANEF 186,837 422,776
and associates KE#E
Bank interest income RITHIEHA 5 (214,613) (353,761)
Dividend income from equity investments at RENAREBEF 2L AL 5 (90,792) (22,743)
fair value through other comprehensive income FENENERRENREBA
Government grants and subsidies B4R B K B (394,438) (281,282)
Loss on disposal of items of non-current assets HEFRHEEBENERE 6 375,662 99,754
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBRARMERE /(M) 6 9,076 (31,142)
Fair value losses/(gain), net: DABEEE,(WE) 38
Financial assets at fair value through IRnBEGFETEA 6 51,267 (9,749)
profit or loss BRNEREE
Impairment of Financial guarantee B ERAE 6 17,324 -
Gain on disposal of financial products HE S BIE MR 6 (131,786) (11,638)
Gain on disposal of investments in joint ventures HERA S REMEE I 5 (48) (67,692)
Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors HEMAEENERARSESR (3,065)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERSETE 14 9,272,924 8,146,823
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEAENE 6 328,265 368,985
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hiv B EEHH 18 2,914,802 1,321,825
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value WREEZ2RFE 6 499,218 152,696
Depreciation of investment properties RENFEHENE 15 2,685 2,496
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRBHAE 6 5,885 -
Impairment of other intangible assets Hin P EEME 6 187,061 -
Impairment of other non-current financial assets HtbIEneemEERE - 6,304
Impairment losses on trade receivable [EMGIERVE R EE B FE 329 (1,907)
financing, net
Impairment of trade receivables, net EUE ZEEFREFE 648,770 504,814
Impairment of prepayments, deposits and BRFE - Bke Rk 191,933 285
other receivables, net Hib EUERTORE SR
Impairment of amounts due from joint ventures AN E R E AR 35,366 7,532
and associates, net FEREFR
Impairment of amounts due from JENCE A B R 7 0B = (2,690)
other related parties, net B
Impairment of long-term receivables, net REENERTRESE 49,907 (11,179)
Impairment of contract assets, net AREEREBEZHE 214,366 (19,824)
Equity-settled share option expense D ENERERS 40 74,297 -
Changes in reserve funds RELEY 4,086 -
24,241,706 16,139,221
cninf%
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O RERER

31 December 2020
—TIEF+TZA=1+—H

2020 2019
—E-%F —T-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 7E (Em),/ wmo (6,701,761) 283,960
Decrease in restricted bank deposits and pledged deposits ~ ZRHISETERLE EHFFZRL 342,575 107,742
Decrease in trade receivables BB FEEFOR D 110,391 3,776,634
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivable financing JENGRIERE (38),/ WD (1,874,187) 727,855
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and other assets JAFIE « AR Rt EER D 1,521,832 121,592
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BRBERD /(% m) 1,426,148 (666,509)
Decrease in amounts due from joint ventures and associates ~ FEUA ‘&1 B R & A 7 FUER 1,665,513 2,680,945
Decrease in amounts due from other related parties R M L A R B 5 R IEDRL - 227,544
(Increase)/decrease in long-term receivables REEREER (), "D (614,479) 905,244
Decrease in completed property held for sale BIEHECRTIMERD 465,064 584,760
Increase/(decrease) in advances from customers BREFEZIEEN, (RD) 5,500 (300)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables ERESRIREEEM,/ (D) 16,997,459 (9,945,477)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals HitER B RETERLEM, (RD) 2,631,298 (260,670)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income BT AL CRiD) 433,573 (339,729)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to joint ventures and ERNEEAFREE QA 1,151,578 (544,546)
associates BRI, CRD)
Increase in contract liabilities AREEEM 3,683,961 1,033,025
Increase in amounts due to other related parties JE 1 EL 4t BB 5 0B E N 26,709 31,571
Increase/(decrease) in provision for warranties EREEENCRD) 114,495 (30,433)
Cash generated from operations REEENRE 45,627,375 14,832,429
Interest received RG] 214,613 353,761
Tax paid RENE (449,320) (445,183)
Net cash flows from operating activities ReRDEANRSRETE 45,392,668 14,741,007
cninf%
EMEiR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BORERER

31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H

2020 2019
it -3 —hF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHEENRSRE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BAME  BERREER (5,964,464) (9,528,245)
Increase in non-current prepayments FER BT FIALE N (4,247,600) (7,395,986)
Purchases of items of leasehold land included in BEAACHAEEENHELMIEE (239,359) (797,080)
right-of-use assets
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT 97,828 (5,552)
Disposal of joint ventures HEAEAT 48 358,685
Additions to other intangible assets Hin R EELm (1,322,671) (2,905,849)
Dividend received from equity investments at fair value B AREEFELETA 13,126 16,440
through other comprehensive income Htra BammEm R ER S
Dividend received from joint ventures and associates BlEERARBEARRE 22,690 34,020
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and HEME « BERREERE R 258,977 413,119
equipment and other intangibles assets HEEVEEMBHRE
Decrease in equity investments at fair value through WARBERELA 77,666 6,303
other comprehensive income B e lamn g nikdmd
Gain on disposal of financial products HESREMHRE 131,786 11,638
Capital contributions to associates ABENRHE (70,344) (154,700)
Capital contributions to joint ventures AAENRIHE (1,526,670) (918,439)
Increase in equity investments at fair value through AAanBEFETFABEN (239,800) (15,800)
profit or loss EREAEEM
Increase in financial assets RETREE (1,435,461) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities REBRDMARSRETHE (14,444,248) (20,881,446)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

O RERER

31 December 2020
—E-Z2E+-A=+-A

2020 2019
g -3 —hE
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZHELNASTE

Proceeds from issue of perpetual loans BITKEEMBHA - 498,792
Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BITRRIERERE 2,000,000 6,000,000
Corporate bond issue expenses NRBEHFETHAX (4,283) (23,217)
Proceeds from issue of super short-term debentures BTREERESMEIE - 14,000,000
Super short-term debenture issue expenses FREHRESREITRE - (7,509)
Repayment of super short-term debentures Téﬁﬁfiﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ% (5,000,000) (14,500,000)
New other loans g EMER - 200,000
New bank loans FTILRITER 40,633,747 58,278,303
Repayment of borrowings BEEN (59,925,239) (51,098,918)

Repayment of perpetual loans EEKER (3,300,000)
Repayment of bonds BEES (2,198,416) (3,000,000)
Interest paid RESEUS (3,244,577) (3,440,331)
Perpetual loan interest paid BRKEER S (222,987) (241,388)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders RISERZ TS (54,776) (150,442)
Dividends paid to owners of the parent ERNEAREEARE (163,689) (556,541)
(Increase)/Decrease in restricted bank deposits and SRHRITERRCKFETR (80),/ (73,321) 817,510

pledged deposits o
Principal portion of lease payments IRBEFENALHH (153,877) (167,700)
Receipt of non-controlling investments FERIZEME 2,800,000 1,786
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities BEEY (FTH),/ EENREREFHE (28,907,418) 6,610,345
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRRSSEYIEMTE 2,041,002 469,906
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FOReRACEEY 11,674,297 11,151,057
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEHT LT 23,199 53,334
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR FRESRESEEN 13,738,498 11,674,297
cninf%
EMER
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31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H
CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION RAREEEH
BYD Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint stock bR ER AT ([ARF]) A—RHLER
limited liability company registered in the People’s Republic EARLME ([FRE]) T IR A
of China (the “PRC”). The Company’s H shares have been RAAE c RRARIMWHEBRBRHBE S _Ft
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited AR=+—REREEEBERSFBERART L
since 31 July 2002. The registered office of the Company e RARIMFEMFERCNPRERE R
is located at Yan An Road, Kuichong, Dapeng District, T AR ME 5 (2 2B EIE PR -
Shenzhen, Guangdong, the PRC.
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries KA REMB AR (GBI AEE]) E24
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the research, EZRABEMRHARER  ABERBHE
development, manufacture and sale of rechargeable m FRIGEREMNEFERRNESRER
batteries and photovoltaic products, automobiles and MEMENMTE  HE  REREE -
related products, handset components and other electronic
products and rail transit equipment and medical protection
products.
Information about subsidiaries FEMBATNER
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as RABIEEZEMBARMFEBOT
follows:
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  to the Company
registration and registered KRTELRL
business share capital EZEAL Principal
Name TEMRYL EER B®TEE,/ Direct Indirect activities
8 ES 3k BTN BE BiE FEBEE
BYD Lithium Batteries Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB6,160,000,000 100% - Research, development, sale and
("BYD Li-ion")** Mainland China  A&X%6,160,000,0007C manufacture of li-ion batteries
RIS iR E A ) HE R A HEREESRTED
([ EiEEm]) /B R
Shanghai BYD Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$63,500,000 75% 25%  Research, development, sale and
(“BYD SH")*** Mainland China 63,500,000% T manufacture of li-ion batteries,
LERTHERAA R solar batteries and solar arrays
([t g 1) / RENH R FE - BERRNESETEN
ARaEE R AR5 a5
BYD Auto Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,351,010,101 99% - Research, development, sale and
("BYD Auto”)*** Mainland China  A&K%1,351,010,1017C manufacture of automobiles
LR EERAF HE MR RE HERBERS
([tpmAaE])~ /BN
cninf%
B#Ein
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

INFORMATION

Issued ordinary/

RAREEER (F)

FENBARNES (&)

Percentage of

equity attributable

to the Company

registration and registered AN EELR
business share capital BEESL Principal
Name TR BRER BRTELE,  Direct Indirect activities
8 EBE R A H# B IEXR
BYD Precision Manufacture Co., PRC/ US$145,000,000 - 65.76% Manufacture, assembly and sale of
Ltd. ("BYD Precision”)****A Mainland China 145,000,000% T mobile handset components and
LEEETEERAR ([hEw  FE/ modules
RBREE]) A HREIAH i AR REEF R RER
Huizhou BYD Battery Co., Ltd. PRC/ US$150,000,000 10% 90%  Research, development, sale and
(“BYD HZ Battery”)*** Mainland China 150,000,000% T manufacture of li-ion batteries and
ol EMERERA A RE accessories
([thmEEME]) B A % BE HERREERETELR
Bt
BYD Auto Industry Co., Ltd. (‘BYD  PRC/ US$1,207,654,387 90% 10%  Research, development, sale and
Auto Industry”)*** Mainland China 1,207,654,387% T manufacture of automobiles and
HEE e TERRAR mE light rail transit equipment
([tEdmREIE]) ™ A % E - BERMEAEREHE
HRE
BYD Electronic (International) Co.,  Hong Kong HK$440,000,000 - 65.76% Investment holding
Ltd. (‘BYD Int1")* E 440,000,000/ T BREER
LHmEF (B BERAA
([Lh e EERR ])
Huizhou BYD Electronic Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ US$110,000,000 - 65.76%  High-level assembly
(“Huizhou Electronic”)***" Mainland China 110,000,000 7T EKTAER
BN THETERAR A/
(TBMNETF]) A FEIRH
Xi'an BYD Electronic Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB100,000,000 - 65.76% Manufacture and sale of mobile
(“Xi'an Electronic”)****" Mainland China  AX#%100,000,0007C handset components
AR THETHERAF HE BERHETFHTEHHE
([BAREF]) A FE A

-y —
chninf=y
EMEn
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INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1.

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H

RAREEER (F)

FENBARNES (&)

Percentage of

Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  to the Company
registration and registered AN EER
business share capital BRAML Principal
Name TR BRER BRTLE,  Direct Indirect activities
8 E3 5k R A H# B IEXR
BYD Auto Sales Co., Ltd. ("‘BYD PRC/ RMB1,050,000,000  4.29% 94.76%  Sale and distribution of automobiles;
Auto Sales”)** Mainland China AR provision of related after-sales
W ABHERRAT e/ 1,050,000,0007% services
([thEdREHeE]) R HERDHAE : REBBERRE
Changsha BYD Auto Co., Ltd. PRC/ RMB1,000,000,000 - 99.88%  Research and development of
(“Changsha Auto”)** Mainland China A R#1,000,000,0007T automobiles and components
ROTLE@EEERAA HE/ R R AE R
(TRpAE]) A
BYD (Shangluo) Industrial Co., PRC/ RMB2,600,000,000 38.50% 60.92%  Research, development,
Ltd. (“Shangluo BYD")*** Mainland China A R#2,600,000,0007T manufacture and sale of solar
BELTHEEERAF R/ batteries and solar arrays
(&I ]) REIAH % BE RERHEAGEELR

AbzgeE3|

*%

* ok ok ok

BYD Int'l is a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong
with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability
companies under PRC law.

These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign joint
ventures under PRC law.

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises under PRC law.

These subsidiaries were wholly owned by BYD Intl, one
of the Company’s subsidiaries.

*%k

*ok ok

ok ok

LEEEEA - FREETEMERIOMNER
A EBROREEBARZMERDR LT

v

ZEMBARSREBETEEZIMRBRAF -

o

MEBARREPEERIMATIEGER

o 48

2 8

EMBARBEPERERIMAIEBEED

ZEMB AR R EEEE (KAFMBA
Z—)B2EHEA -
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T

2.1

S

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, other non-current financial assets, trade receivable
financing and derivative financial instruments, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

2.1

HEMBHRRDRRAETEEHMAE (&
BEAE ) RGN CEBMEREER)
(KEEMBREEL)]) (BERE(EER
BRELR) (BB GHER) ((FBES
‘;EE“JN)&é%ﬁ) FEARETRAURER

NEMEHIMBEREMAER - ILFRHREK
TIRBELRALRE  EETUAAEE
AEYAAHMGEKENERIRE  Hit
FRBEMEE FRFARERITLESR
TR BT A EERFE - FYH
BERUARE ([ARED 27 BREHEH
SN FTBEBEDNBREREANTAL -

aOTE%E

AV BHRREEAEEBE_T_TF+
“AZT - HLEEEZBBE®RE - HERQR
T—RBARRERAEREFNNER (8
EREBIEER) EAKEH2HEREHR
R F B E AR R R F B RENIA KA
ERHREHRNED (AASEER TR
BRENANTEREHRBAEDNRF#E
M) FEZERMRE - BEUSIEHIE -

www NW’W D LOm cn
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H

mBERE (F)

BHFEE (F)
WARREEKEERE I NREHRAZ
SRR CUER - AIARKERFERERE
LTHRALREHRNENREEE— )1
ZERIER - 8%

(a) HERBEHRHGBEZIFHEANGRZR
BE

(b) EHAERZHMELNER @ K

(c) ZFTEENREENEERFE -

P I8 ) B R 2 ] ) B 75 e ok O ¥R 5 B TR AR
Rl THRA-BMEABRRRH - WERRH
XEBAEERGZGE L AEFSHFA
B WHBSHAREZSENERLEZR
Rk e

BELEMEARRSEREITIEBRA
SEER T%ﬁA&#?%%"Wﬁ%%
SIECFERERASRARAR - BAANEENX
BRRZERSHNMBEEARRREER
BE - WA AXEREREDRNE
DHER B 2 8K -

f‘— 3¢

HWAEFERBRBER L = EZEHEES
B —EAmA EHIRES) - QRSB G ENT
HEBNENREHR - B RRHPIAE
B HERE) (ITHIRLRELES) - AR
BEIHARK -

AR E R EHHE ARG - BIER
HERWZMBRARMNEE (BIERE) KA
& ()RR ERREE - &P
BRANRENRTRSHER  UTRNIERER
(VPR B R EE : (iTREEMKRE
NARBE:: L(i)EARLLEENEGS
E51E - RN EMEE RERNERNAEE
B2 EFHEABENE TR (1@
) BN EEEMASEEE L EMH
HEERABEMHREERR °
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Amendments to HKAS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(a) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out
a comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes
new chapters on measurement and reporting
financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated
definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship,
prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial
reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained
therein override the concepts or requirements in any
standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

B BERRBEENEE

AEEERAFENWBHRRENERA-F
—NEHBRERSERE TIRERTCE
BB REER) o

(BRPBREER) REH)EZE
E3RAERT

(EEM GRS ER)D T FEEHE
Fo5% - (BB ERTERD
EI9H (BB HHME
R ETIRHBET

(BREHERDE 16  FEHLEHN
BER] HTEE

(FERIFRA)

(BAEEADFE15H BEANESE
RCEEGFERD
E8IRHIER]

ZEF-NFHBFHRERERRBIERT(E
AUBHREEN)NMEE RFER XA :

(a) Z=F-NFHFHREH2EX (B
EZR ) 5B BB s RAREHE
MEEHS - BRMESI ARM B R
RRMBEHE B FEBR - LR
BB T35 77 PAIR AR S e AR - 41
SERBEAEFERRENBHRA
MES  BHIUHEREERERE
MFESIAREERABENENEER
RIERZFE - HNBBEE - BEHR
FARETHEMENMBHREZAEC -
SERAFH-IRER - BETES
FOBE S B 2 B (AR R RO B AR
o BSER Y EH AR E M IR
ARRBEEEMERZE -

-y —
chninf=y
EMEn
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or after
1 January 2020. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H

(BRUMBREEL)FEIFNEFTE
BUYRERBEBHNER 2B
3l RFERTER - H—RIEEIE
BMEEEWRR /XY HAELE
B—EEAR—EEELBE  mE
HEAYREEHNENEEEXRT
Ble —HEBANVBREMBAILE
EFfFNBRARBREMERE - ZFE
AIBREMIS2EERTHRIER
REBAFBEL G R2 - &
HEEREGNRAREBEEMLBESR
BHAHEEESHRNELERE
Bl ZERENGEIELNESE &
B ER AR PRHAR MR -
BREWRARIKE AEESHNHAMK
A AN - RFERTRE R
BREGEEEEZMMNES - LI AH
BOAABESEPRE - LEBEF
HPESN —RINEHREERE R
HEH - AREHLFERTIRRIER
RIE-TF-A-BRZEBEELEN
RHEAEMEN - ZFETLEEH AR
SENM BRI RRAEEEA
@,

o

(BEARMBHRSEADFIR  (FE
GEHER) EIFRM(EFBHMBRSE
BADETHROETRESTENE
RERRAN X ([EREAE]) RK
RAMEEEZ fIHRPHERSE 2
IR o ZHE AT RO E By I HO AROR
& BB E S T REN R ER
R M R 2 A H) T AR A T -
o - ZFERTREARIMREE LR
HEFERYREITRERZZEN
EHHRBEENEZEN - ZFEFILE
HAK B ERR KRB E LM
FE  RARAEEY BRI XY

HHRAME o
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with
earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
monthly lease payments for the leases of the
Group’s plant and machinery have been reduced
or waived by the lessors upon reducing the scale
of production as a result of the pandemic and there
are no other changes to the terms of the leases.
The Group has early adopted the amendment on
1 January 2020 and elected not to apply lease
modification accounting for all rent concessions
granted by the lessors as a result of the pandemic
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments
arising from the rent concessions of RMB3,065,000
has been accounted for as a variable lease payment
by derecognising part of the lease liabilities and
crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2020.

(e) Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments
did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

(EAMBmEER)E 165 HEE]
BERAARE—EATEREEHENE
ERFEmXREENEEFEELEN
Heme T ERAHEEBREEERE -
EREE A EEANEBENEEY
ZEAHHESRR  BEEOHEER
REBBIFHREMNEE L ELRE
BIEARTE SR ¢ (i)FAENFURZE
EXEREIN-_ZE-_—FA=+H
YZH'Ji‘JEﬁE’]MIﬁ R(inHEEME
MR RAG I mE RS & - 5]
L}Eﬁ"a% AR -FTFA—H
S BB FERBAER - WAt
RRIEARSEBMER -

HEZZ-_FTF+_A=1+—HLF
B AEBEREBEOFESHEER
BT A AR SRR E K& ER
ETAMENK MBS ERE
hEE) c AEBER T _FTF— A
—HIRRRMZIEET - WEETE
BT -TF+ A=+ —HIEFE
HHEARZBEMELNABEHESEE
FERMEBREEE - Bt - 48
%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ9mfﬁﬁﬁﬁAE%
3,065,0007C * F @R IFERIH A
EgBUEAMEHMEN TG AEE
TE-TE+-A=+—HIEFEER

%o

(BREFER) B1RR(EB G
) F8HRMERT R EERNRIE
EoMEREL 1P1’T/*\£§?EHH%‘
B HERBUL SR ER BT ER
ﬁ?ﬁ‘“iﬁi‘%ﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%iﬁ%
REWRAEHIORE  ZEHIEBE
R REBFBEBFEANMERKIUANE
e ESEEEME - ZFEFAL
BHASENMBRARERRELE
AERTE -
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 2.3 ER{THRERN(ETBMBREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS aly
The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, REEWEARTBRERER T EEME
that have been issued but are not yet effective and are mARAEMBEARAEE 2 LS (CBR B
applicable to the Group, in these financial statements. TEERERER]) o
Amendments to HKFRS 3  Reference to the Conceptual (BB BHREER]) 51 A2 HESE?
Framework ? FEIWAEET
Amendments to HKFRS Interest Rate Benchmark (CEEMBHREELER)FE FIFHREN E —
9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2 5o (EBEEINDE FoER
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 395% (BB B WS
ERDETH - CBBH
EWMELEA)F 455 %
(CEAMBHREER)F
1655 HER]
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets (B HHRELERNFI10 REZHAZE
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its RRAEBGFERNE DFHEER
Associate or Joint Venture * 28R (ZFE——F)HW 712 B &
(=5 1 BT &
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as (CEBSHERDSE 1NN FHEESERR
Current or Non-current > ° (=5 E/lE i/
Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment: (EBEGHEN)FE165H WX BERK
Proceeds before Intended 1BE] % - (EELE
Use? BRI BTiEk
I5?
Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS (BEEMBREEL) T (BB HHE
HKFRSs 2018-2020 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative —NEFEZT_BFr  EAPDEIF
Examples accompanying FEE (BB HHRE
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412 BADE I -
(BB HHRE
ERI)FE 165
TEIE B FEE )
R(EEEE
ERDFE 415
HIEET?
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 RZZE-Z—F—A—HdzEBRBZF
January 2021 EEAIR AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZTZ-Z—F—A Az BRI ZF
January 2022 EEAIR AR
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 RZTZZ=F—A—HdzEZRBEZF
January 2023 EEAIR AR
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but ‘ WiEETAGERBH - el KA
available for adoption
5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, 5 HARCEBGTERD B1RAEE] - &
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial BREBESRAYBFHENZH — EHA
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term HEBIZESNEE TR A5
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause R T _FF+ A& - MEEER
was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding SRR ERTE
wording with no change in conclusion
cninf%
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

2.3

ERTERERN(EBUBREE
A1) ()

BHEHSERARNAEENZF(REYH
WEER)NE—TERFAWT

(BARRBREER) FIFMETEEA
T NFRNABMNS|IBYFHE B AR
ARSI REMYHFHREFRLZZER - T
BERNBEREERTE - REEFTT(E
B HREER) FEIRMUERE S| A SIER
NEFEREERBEZANE Z R RAIE
RIAGISMER  ZPISMERIRTE - HRA
EEBNCEA G LR E37HA(ERE (B
REMBHREREZRS) - 2B F21R8HE
AWBEERIABENS  MRZEEEBE
BEAMIFRECEAHPTEL - WEACE
BB mEEN)FEIRNERED HISE
(CERBGTER) EI7HI(EE (BRI
BERBZEE) - 2B)F215 - MRS
TEZR o WEIN » RFERTRBRREENKE
BT A RIRT - AEEEFBE T
ZFE-A-HERERNRAZFER - AR
SEFTRMEANKBERARRERERRH
R ENEBE O FAEERBE R

B IEXZFETNTE
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments
and risk management strategy. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are
not required to restate the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies
based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and
the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) as at 31
December 2020. If the interest rates of these borrowings
are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will
apply this practical expedient upon the modification of
these borrowings when the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant modification
gain or loss will arise as a result of applying the
amendments to these changes. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that
are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples

accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.

amendments that are expected to be applicable to the

Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’'s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases:

payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease

incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

Details of the

removes the illustration of
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively.
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

In addition, when there has been a

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised

in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2.4

S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its listed equity investments and
derivative financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and completed property held
for sale), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’'s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

asset,
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Except for moulds, depreciation is calculated on the
straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives and
residual value are as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

The unit of production method is used to write off the cost
of moulds.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress representing property and plant
under construction is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
at cost, including transaction costs, less any depreciation
and any losses.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose as follows:
Buildings 1.4% to 9.5%
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs (continued)

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. The development costs are amortised
using the straight-line basis over the commercial lives of
the underlying products not exceeding ten years, except
for those of new energy vehicles which are amortised using
the unit-of-production method, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

Industrial proprietary rights

Industrial proprietary rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of two to ten years.

Know-how

Know-how is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of five years.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of five years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group
(a)

as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings
Machinery and other equipment

44 to 99 years
1to 20 years
11to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation
is calculated using the estimated useful life of the
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of office equipment and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. When a
contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, are accounted for as finance leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For trade receivable financing, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income when
they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the financial asset,
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.

in which case, such

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EESHBEHRE (H)
POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets RIEBEIEMEE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial CREE (IWNER - eREEEFT
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is g — BT eREERETE D) FEETT
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s ER TR IEER (ANEASENE OB
consolidated statement of financial position) when: MEBR)
. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have . BZEEKRIReRENEFNEE
expired; or ek
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash . AEEDHEEERNRBEZEENR
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation SREMERN  HERBIEERE| L
to pay the received cash flows in full without RmE=EAEEAZEEINE
material delay to a third party under a “pass- WWReRE  BEMERNER - I
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has B)ANEECHEEZEENBARI
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of DR REEHR - (b )ﬂiﬁllﬁﬁq
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred ’“‘Yf%%EZﬁFE’]%K*B % N [a]
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards HEEEEZEENE %'H?é °
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash WEDEEEAEERIGR & REMEFIK
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through AIVERLTY AEBgTEEESREZ
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ’]ﬂﬁﬁ&@ﬁl«}&EEﬁ =i
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. BEZRNREZEENBAIL D AR &E
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all WO EEEZEAENTRIE E'J$’ilf€
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of BIRAFEL2UEZEENEERREEEE
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred Eomtims  AEEMEHERIEEEE -
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. PEZEEERBBEGENEEERRAE
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated ERBHEN LB -
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee BESHERCEREEEELN —EER -
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the RZEEENREOEREAEELIEEED
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum EERENREETE -
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
cninf% .,
v
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

For trade receivable financing,
low credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the
Group evaluates whether the trade receivable financing is
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses

the Group applies the

the external credit ratings of the trade receivable financing.
In addition,
a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are past due.

the Group considers that there has been
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EESHEXRRBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) cRIEERME (&)
General approach (continued) —M A ()
The Group considers a financial asset in default when MAERBIBEE®MIOARER - MIAKEREA
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in THEEEQN - AM - EETEALT - WA
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial EsiohEfE R R - e RASERERNE
asset to be in default when internal or external information EEBRAEMER + REBT KA 5LBEHUWK
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the MAREESRFIE  AAXAEETAIRAESRE
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into BEEN -WMELEEEBEHKEERESM
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A 2 AMHemEE -

financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Trade receivable financing and financial assets at JEWFIERE RABEX AT ENEREE

amortised cost are subject to impairment under the RIE—RAXNEATRE  WILRUATAFTER

general approach and they are classified within the HEEBBENRES R - EAGHLE (R

following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade TCEE) KEE SRR R A REERIN

receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk BEE1 — @RIEAEMNEERKRAVIFER
has not increased significantly since initial BAREEIL N - BEBERER
recognition and for which the loss allowance HER12EABREESESE
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month FTE
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has B2 — SRMIANEERREVISER
increased significantly since initial recognition BAAEEN - EEWIEEERE
but that are not credit-impaired financial BEREMNSREE  BEBERE
assets and for which the loss allowance is RIESRFRATEHEERES
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs BT E

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at B3 — eREENRBRSABMREERE
the reporting date (but that are not purchased (EHEWIFBEXNRDEEEFE
or originated credit-impaired) and for which BEMNEMTE)  BEERE
the loss allowance is measured at an amount RIESERFERAEHREERES
equal to lifetime ECLs A=
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payable, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, and interest-bearing bank, and other borrowings
and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are
satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification
to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial,
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

in which case
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings) (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
foreign currency forward contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Those derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and
later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-
current or separated into current and non-current portions
based on an assessment of the facts and circumstances
(i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

. Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as
an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after
the end of the reporting period, the derivative is
classified as non-current (or separated into current
and non-current portions) consistently with the
classification of the underlying item.

2.4

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H

EESRERBE (B)

HEHEMTA

iR L7 T 38 0 £ 05 T 4 5
ERRSBRAFWERELGE - AN
PRAERAHEBEY  SHAERSMA
BB FREBTRABRARAN L HF
o

TEEMIA

VIR R R BB
AEBEERINEERERARSTESRT
B mEINERR - ZETESRTAYS
BAUMEARERNAABERER  HiR
NAREEFE - TETAEAREERLE
BENEEIR MAARBEANEED
BE o

METAARBEEEHEENENRBERE
FRAREE - MREREFOEERE D AR
S H TR E AR & Was HERR R AR I 0

HEFEREREM I BEEER -

TRENEFE B D ARE

WIEEABERERITEZITETI AN
RRBXIFRE  IRBEHEERBRZF
& (BB ANRER) P AR AIRD

B o

. EASEEMFEITETREREE
S (M EERETEEERIET )
ERBRERRE T —EARE - %
TETATEBEREAR 2B 8D
BRIERY (XOHARBDRIERY
BB o

139

B

&
= 4

www_cninfo.com.cn



BYD Company Limited
140 LeEsRBBRAE

Notes to Financial Statements

B TS ¥R R B

31 December 2020
—TIEF+TZA=1+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EESHHEFE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Completed properties held for sale BELECRIYE

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower BIEHED R T YL AE A &5 FEW
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by ERRNBIESETER AR KRIEEYEEN
an apportionment of the total land and buildings costs TH R EEANK AR HIMEE o 7] IR F
attributable to unsold properties. Net realisable value is BIHESZENMEEERBEERMEM
estimated by the directors based on the prevailing market fhEt .

prices, on an individual property basis.

Inventories 7E

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FEEKANHERZRFEMEFHBRESET]
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted BR o AR MEFHEEETE - MHAER
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and mREKm - AIBFREERM  BEEALR
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour HELOINKETER - BEKKREEBRE
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Cost of EEMEBRKNABE - 2B FEBRBMEE
moulds is determined at the actual cost incurred in the EE R TTK & & FTE b ET AR E
production process. Net realisable value is based on E °

estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash REMREREXRNS B kBeSFEY
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on PEFERSREFHATRAR —RREBAK=
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid EAREE - AERERAEMNSEESRE
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts BES2IABRTIANEHSERENRE -
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in BAREREENERTEY - AAKERS
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three BEIRHMER IS ©

months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial HEaMBRRENT -  BekBREFEY
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on BREFERSERTFR(BEEHER KL
hand and at banks, including term deposits and assets MEEBEEUMECRIZRENEE) -

similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Short-term deposits EHIEER

Term deposits with an initial term of over three months but MR EAR A =1E A LA £ R—F LA T8 E BT
less than one year were classified as short-term deposits FREMHMBIRAERAND AR E BT
on the consolidated statement of financial position. Koo
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain goods and the provision of construction services
for general repairs of defects occurring during the warranty
period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns, discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associate, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released to the statement of profit or loss by way of a

reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with
no or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction
of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the
government loans is determined using the effective interest
rate method, as further explained in the accounting
policy for
government loans granted with no or at a below-market
rate of interest, which is the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loans and the proceeds received,
is treated as a government grant and released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

“Financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

A significant financing component does not exist if the
difference between the promised consideration and the
cash selling price of the good or service arises for reasons
other than the provision of finance.

The Group sells products to a customer who is also the
supplier of key materials used in the manufacturing of
products. The Group obtains the control of the materials
purchased from the customer and provides significant
services to integrate materials with other goods and
services into a portfolio of outputs. The Group considered
itself as a principal in the arrangement and accordingly
recognizes revenue on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group
is an agent and records as revenue the net amount that
it retains for its agency services if its role is to arrange to
provide the goods.

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
and acceptance of the goods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EESBEREE &)
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued) WAER (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EFERIKA ()
(a)  Sale of goods (continued) (a) tHEEM(E)

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide
customers with rebates. The rebates give rise to
variable consideration.

(i) Rebates

Retrospective rebates may be provided to
certain customers according to the Group’s
business policy. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. The Group
is required to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method
based on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled.

Construction services

The construction contract entered into between
the Group and its customers usually includes
performance obligations such as construction
services. As the irreplaceable use of the services
provided by the Group, and the Group has the right
to receive payment for the performance part that
has been completed so far in the whole contract
period, the Group considers them as performance
obligations within a certain period of time, and
recognises the revenue based on the performance
progress, except where the performance progress
cannot be reasonably determined. The Group
determines the performance progress for the
services provided in accordance with the output
method. When the performance progress cannot
be reasonably determined, if the costs incurred by
the Group are expected to be compensated, the
revenue will be recognised based on the amount of
costs incurred, until the performance progress can
be reasonably determined.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(c) Provision for services

Revenue from the provision of services is
recognised over the scheduled period on an input
method because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets
are subject to impairment assessment, details of which
are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all the following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing
to satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that
is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-
settled share-based payments and cash-settled share-
based payments. Equity-settled share-based payments
are transactions of the Group settled through the payment
of shares or other equity instruments in consideration for
receiving services.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange
for services rendered by employees are measured at the
fair value of equity instruments granted to employees.
Instruments which are vested immediately upon the grant
are charged to relevant costs or expenses at the fair value
on the date of grant and the capital reserve is credited
accordingly. Instruments of which vesting is conditional
upon completion of services or fulfillment of performance
conditions are measured by recognising services rendered
during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value
on the date of grant according to the best estimates
conducted by the Group at each balance sheet date during
the pending period. The fair value of equity instruments is
determined using the binomial option pricing model. For
details see Note 40. Share-based payment.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest due to non-fulfillment of non-market conditions and/or
vesting conditions. For the market or non-vesting condition
under the share-based payments agreement, it should
be treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
other performance condition and/or vesting conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based
payment are modified, as a minimum, services obtained
are recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification
which increases the total fair value of the instrument ranted,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. Where employees or other parties are
permitted to choose to fulfill non-vesting conditions but
have not fulfilled during the pending period, equity-settled
share-based payments are deemed cancelled. However,
if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award.

Employee benefits
Employees’ leave entitlements

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.

Employees’ entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Medical benefits

The Group’s contributions to various defined contribution
medical benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC are expensed as
incurred.

Pension scheme — Mainland China

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries, which operate
in Mainland China, are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension scheme — outside Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various
defined contribution plans organised by the relevant
governmental authorities in various areas other than
Mainland China. The Group’s liability in respect of these
plans is limited to the contributions payable at the end of
each period. Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

Housing fund — Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to a defined
contribution housing fund plan operated by the local
municipal government. Contributions to this plan by the
Group are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for
the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation
rate ranging between 4.54% and 5.74% has been applied
to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

2.4

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H

EESRERBE (B)

BEREF (&)
BRIKTE B — P EIAH LS 5

REEE A @ B R IAINE R 58 B
MR8 RS 1 & E R R IR - NS [E]
BEZEENETERRL SR B
Ko ZER BRI ELR X o

EEREE — PEAH

AEBAEAHFTA2EE TR
YWEBRERES2EEFE - NREBEME
B TDNELRHE -

CENZE

W ZEIEEAREREE (AEFRER
AXEFHEEEREAEGIHENEE)
BEREHENERKABIEER  FRZEE
ER AR « ZEBRKNAEEERNHA
REEREREHHER TBBIEER - #
REEEREBERXMBERRIFERKRE
PR ER B 152 B W ok B B AE B A 0 18 SR AR
R - 2EBEADE AR AR EE SR
o ERKABRERAERESELNHN
BEREMER -

WECBE—RMEBTHARIEAEREE
BHERIEE 2R BIEN T 4.54% E£5.74%
L RBEE R o

R E

KA BERRERBR R A FESIREER
BAEE B2 RERBWERT KRR

ey
cninf=g
E#ER
www _chinfo.com.cn



152

BYD Company Limited
LeEsRBBRAE

Notes to Financial Statements

B TS ¥R R B

31 December 2020

=

2.4

—EE+-f=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. The Group’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group sells products to a customer who is also the
supplier of key materials used in the manufacturing of
products. The Group needs to determine whether it is a
principal or an agent in these transactions by evaluating
the nature of its promise to the customer. The Group is
a principal and therefore records revenue on a gross
basis if it controls promised goods before transferring the
goods to the customer. Otherwise, the Group is an agent
and records as revenue the net amount that it retains for
its agency services if its role is to arrange to provide the
goods. To assess whether the Group controls the goods
before they are transferred to the customer, the Group
has considered various factors, including but not limited
to whether the Group is (i) the primary obligor in the
arrangement, (ii) has general inventory risk, (iii) has latitude
in establishing the selling price and (iv) has significant
involvement in the determination of product and service
specifications.

Deferred tax on withholding tax arising from the
distributions of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue
for withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends from certain subsidiaries levied in the relevant
tax jurisdiction is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividends. Further details are included in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimation of constraint on variable consideration

When estimating the effect of an uncertainty on an amount
of variable consideration to which the entity will be entitled,
the entity is required to consider all information (historical,
current and forecast) that is reasonably available to the
entity and to estimate variable amount of consideration in
a range of possible consideration amounts. An expected
value may be an appropriate estimate of the amount of
variable considerations if an entity has a large number
of contracts with similar characteristics. The most likely
amount may be an appropriate estimate of the amount of
variable consideration if contract has only two possible
amounts. When an entity determines that it cannot meet
the highly probable threshold if it includes all of the
variable consideration in the transaction price, the amount
of variable consideration that must be included in the
transaction price is limited to the amount that would not
result in a significant revenue reversal. That is, an entity
is required to include in the transaction price the portion
of variable consideration that will not result in a significant
revenue reversal when the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. A
minimum amount of variable consideration should be
included in the transaction price when doing so would
not result in a significant reversal of cumulative revenue
recognised. At the end of each reporting period, the entity
would be required to revaluate variable consideration,
including constraints on variable consideration to reflect
any changes during the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2020 was RMB65,914,000 (2019:
RMB65,914,000). Further details are given in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on the
invoice date for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns by product type.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in notes
24 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have
to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than gooadwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2020
—TIFF+ZA=1+—H

ETREF ARG (&)

THES V=l EXC )
HE — (BB EERF

AEEEEVABEEHEETME SN X
WEEREEREN R (EEEERNEX])
EHEAE  HEEENENAKERER
HERUKERRETNEAREEZEBRLUN
BEMBBEANES - MEBARBURRA
MBOERA R AORE - Jit - EEEE
MNERRAKEBAXNINESH B8
FEBAEENKR (IR TETRERS
MBARME ) RFEEHHETHARUR
BRAHE W 5 SR S (G B (BN E & IE A
MEBARMWMERRER)  MIFELMG
ite ARBEERAEREABE (PlmWE
A (A ER) AEHEEEERN X - WA
HARERELE TH (PIMHERQFN
BBEEFR) -

e BEE (BEES) RlE

AEEENEREPRIEMBEFERE
E(BERERREEE) B S HBEMBEDR
R FHERNBVEESNESFRHRZ
PFREETRENR - EMFSREENR
HH 2R B T 7T A2 1 AT 4R B A BR SR B A T TORUE
A - BERRSELEMNNIRE AR
Yoo & 58 (BIE R A B AR &R R fE B
BEMERZBSE) K - AIHIRE - &
EAABEREERAR  BORHERS
REQATFREEEIZBUEERSEE
FABTERLEEEMELNESAERAM
B - BFFEERERR  BEBLAMR
KEEESRCELFUMNBHRRERER
B WEEBESENTRIUFEZFHRER
E/RE -

157

Bifl

&
-

www_cninfo.com.cn



158

BYD Company Limited
LeEsRBBRAE

Notes to Financial Statements

B TS ¥R R B

31 December 2020

T

S

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and amortisation

The Group calculates the depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
or on the unit-of-production basis and after taking into
account their estimated residual value, estimated useful
lives or estimated total production quantities, commencing
from the date the items of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are placed into use. The estimated
useful lives or the total production quantities reflect the
directors’ estimate of the period that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s
items of property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was
RMB201,320,000 (2019: RMB304,996,000). The amount
of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was
RMB3,862,193,000 (2019: RMB4,006,626,000). Further
details are disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the expected
future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to
be applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31
December 2020, the best estimate of the carrying amount
of capitalised development costs was RMB9,688,588,000
(2019: RMB11,545,664,000). Further details are disclosed
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Warranty provisions

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group are
recognised based on sales volume and past experience of
the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate. Management reviews and adjusts
the provision to recognise the best estimate at the end of
each of the reporting periods. Further details are disclosed
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Write-down of inventories based on the lower of cost and
net realisable value

The Group, pursuant to the accounting policy for
inventories, writes down inventories from cost to net
realisable value and makes reserves for slow-moving items
and obsolescence by using the lower of cost and net
realisable value rule. The Group re-estimates the allowance
to reduce the valuation of inventories to net realisable value
item by item at the end of each reporting period.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the rechargeable batteries and photovoltaic
products segment comprises the manufacture and
sale of lithium-ion batteries and nickel batteries,
photovoltaic products and iron batteries products
(including energy storage stations and iron battery
packs), principally for mobile phones, electric
tools and other portable electronic instruments,
photovoltaic products, energy storage products and
electric vehicles;

(b) the Mobile handset components, assembly
service and other products segment comprises
the manufacture and sale of mobile handset
components such as housings, electronic
components, the provision of assembly services and
medical protection products; and
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OPERATING SEGMENT
(continued)

INFORMATION

(c) the automobiles and related products and other
products segment comprises the manufacture and
sale of automobiles and auto-related moulds and
components and automobile leasing and after sales
services, rail transport related business and medical
protection products.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that non-lease-
related finance costs, interest income, exchange gains and
losses, government grants and subsidies, as well as head
office and corporate expenses and gains are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, goodwill,
equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, other non-current financial assets,
derivative financial instruments, investment properties and
other unallocated head office and corporate assets, as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax
payable, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, derivative
financial instruments, interest payable, dividend payable
and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Transfer pricing in operating segments is determined with
reference to the agreed price among operating segments.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. R ER (F)

(continued)
Mobile handset  Automobiles
Rechargeable  components, and related
batteries and assembly products,
BE-E-Ef photovoltaic ~ service and and other Corporate
Year ended 31 December 2020 TZRZt-ALEE products other products products and others Total
TREEEN FHIDH A% RE ERE o
REARER REftER ERRHtER REf &t
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
Segment revenue (note 3) PR (His5)
Sales to external customers ANFEPEE 11,704,632 59,354,468 81,957,889 452,195 153,469,184
Intersegment sales ZHBRMEE 10,384,321 14,844,929 2,186,889 - 27,416,139
Others including other income from sales of £ (BEREHERH  HES 362,217 356,288 254,445 1,142 974,092
scrap materials, lease and others MEMKA)
Taxes and surcharges HeERMmE 20,679 332,211 1,780,991 20,534 2,154,415
22,471,849 74,887,896 86,180,214 473,871 184,013,830
Reconciliation: 8
Elimination of intersegment sales ERHRMHEENH (27,416,139)
Elimination of other gross income RN §: (974,092)
Elimination of taxes and surcharges Be kMBI (2,154,415)
Revenue - sales to external customers WA - INREPHE 153,469,184
Segment results AB%E 809,900 6,260,670 2,906,979 1,410 9,978,959
Recongiliation: HE
Elimination of intersegment results FPHENFEMH (910,416)
Interest income M EMA 214,613
Dividend income and unallocated gains REMARR A B 2,190,437
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ~ EREHKSEHR (1,523,627)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease  BEMA(TEEREERE (3,067,379)
liabilties) g)
Profit before tax BRARH 6,882,587
cninf%
E#ER
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION 4.

REsIER (&)

(continued)
Mobile handset ~ Automobiles
Rechargeable  components, and related
batteries and assembly products,
Bz-ZoER photovoltaic service and and other Corporate
Year ended 31 December 2020 TZA=t+-ALEE products other products products and others Total
TREAEEM FHBE A% RE REEE i
RARER REftER ERRELER REf fit
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARBTR ARETTR ARBT R ARBT R
Segment assets SHEE 37,472,382 37,340,874 121,710,398 - 196,523,654
Reconciliation: BE -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 9 RN (3,711,632)
Elimination of unrealised profit from EPHEEEAEREN M S (2,026,657)
intersegment sales
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMRIREE 10,231,956
Total assets BEfE 201,017,321
Segment liabilities AHEE 17,754,593 20,628,730 43,086,393 - 81,469,716
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of intersegment payables Z0 BEEATEME (3,711,632)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ﬁ%& LR EE 58,805,325
Total liabilities Eleect 136,563,409
Other segment information: At HER
Share of (profits)/losses of: HMECGEF) /BB
Joint ventures AENTH (2,211) 201,166 198,955
Associates =N 27,943 (40,061) (12,118)
Impairment losses recognised in the BREAPEINHESETE 221,690 3,440 467,034 692,164
statement of profit or loss, net
Impairment losses/(losses reversed) on SRRAREENRERR,/ 201,005 (10,679) 975,942 1,166,268
financial and contract assets (BiEEmE)
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 3,053,540 2,137,464 7,327,671 - 12,518,675
Investments in joint ventures REENENEE 306,611 - 4,136,196 - 4,442,807
Investments in associates REEDRANEE 410,473 - 612,308 - 1,022,781
Capital expenditure® BRRY 4,736,572 3,436,447 4,392,564 - 12,565,583
cninf%
BEif
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REsIER (&)

(continued)
Mobile handset
Rechargeable  components, Automobiles
batteries and assembly and related
BE-Z-N% photovoltaic service and  products, and Corporate
Year ended 31 December 2019 TZAZ+-ALEE products  other products  other products and others Total
CREEEN FHEIE B8R AE EEE ER
REARER REMER EakitEm Eft At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Segment revenue (note 3) PRBA (His5)
Sales to external customers MIMREPHE 9,718,500 52,522,290 59,537,327 - 121,778,117
Intersegment sales EPBRNEHE 12,012,976 1,697,354 1728,042 - 15,438,372
Others including other gross income from ~ Eft (AAREHENE - Bif 757,742 663,898 2,387,372 570,798 4,399,810
sales of properties and raw materials HROEERRLHERA)
and disposal of scrap materials
Taxes and surcharges e RMmE 29415 173,818 1,341,002 16,361 1,560,596
22,518,633 55,077,360 64,993,743 587,159 143,176,895
Recongiliation: HE
Elimination of intersegment sales XONEREERE (15,438,372)
Elimination of other gross income L ETION i (4,399,810)
Elimination of taxes and surcharges e R mEHH (1,560,596)
Revenue - sales to external customers WA -RSNREPHE 121778 117
Segment results AHEE 398,567 1765,378 2,784,635 1,759 4,950,339
Recongiliation: HE
Elimination of intersegment results ERPRMEEMS (573,653)
Interest income FEHA 353,761
Dividend income and unallocated gains REMARK A Bz 2,203,424
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ¥ REBKP RS (1,068,260)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease  BEMA(TEEREERE (3,454,480)
liabiliies) Mg
Profit before tax B ATER 2,431,131
cninf%
E#ER
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. R ER (F)

(continued)
Mobile handset
Rechargeable  components, Automobiles
batteries and assembly and related
BECE-N% photovoltaic ~ service and  products, and Corporate
Year ended 31 December 2019 TZA=t+-ALEE products  other products  other products and others Total
CRREEN FEIK B A8 ERE ER
RARER REMER EnkEtER £t fit
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARETT ARETT ARETTL AREFT
Segment assets AHEE 38,231,539 30341049 123579755 - 192,152,343
Reconciliation: ol 2
Elimination of intersegment receivables P RN (7,088,335)
Elimination of unrealised profit from EPHEBEEREREN M S (924,150)
intersegment sales
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMADEEE 11,501,735
Total assets EELE 195,641,593
Segment liabilities bkt 15,784,339 18711057 32,157,078 - 61652474
Reconciliation: i
Elimination of intersegment payables ROBERNTENE (7,088,335)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ﬁ%& HANEER 78,476,034
Total liabilties BfREE 133,040,173
Other segment information: At HER
Share of (profits)/losses of: HMECGEF) /BB
Joint ventures AENT (7.941) - 443252 - 435 311
Associates BENE] 14,820 - (27,355) - (12,535)
Impairment losses recognised in the ERZPERNHESRTE 103,986 55,014 - - 159,000
statement of profit or loss, net
Impairment losses/(losses reversed) on SBRAREENFERE,/ 475,498 28,677 (27,144) - 477,031
financial and contract assets (BiEEmE)
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 2,328 187 2,375,951 5,135,991 - 9,840,129
Investments in joint ventures RAEARINRE 300,055 - 2,805,090 - 3,105,145
Investments in associates REEARNRE 438,416 - 516,614 - 955,030
Capital expenditure* ERER 6,682,281 3,943,451 8,829,421 - 19,455,153
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BABYBESAEWE  HMERSRE -
plant and equipment, investment properties, right-of- KREME  FREEE  HthEREE
use assets, other intangible assets and prepayment for K - BB REHEE B TERRIE -

items of property, plant and equipment.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. gRETHER (F)
(continued)

Geographical information wEER
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a)  KEIREFAJHA
2020 2019
—BECEHF —E-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBEFTT
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau FE(BIEEE  ORFMR 94,345,873 102,266,890
and Taiwan) =)
Overseas sl 59,123,311 19,511,227
153,469,184 121,778,117
The revenue information above is based on the FMg AN E R TR IR R P AT
locations of customers. B o
(b)  Non-current assets (b) FERBEE
2020 2019
ko’ 523 —E-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR%¥T R ARBEFTT
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and FE(BEEE BN R 82,344,444 82,656,260
Taiwan) a88)
Overseas sl 1,722,989 1,228,628
84,067,433 83,884,888
The non-current asset information above is based on FIERBEEER IRBEEME
the locations of the assets and excludes goodwill, HEER - MERETREE  @RIAR
financial instruments and deferred tax assets. BLEBIHEE o

cninf%
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